Schedule

Meeting of the
Pierpont Community & Technical College
Board of Governors

October 19, 2010

Falcon Center Board Room
Fairmont, WV

2:00 P.M. Full Board Meeting Falcon Center Board Room



Pierpont Community & Technical College Board of Governors

Meeting of October 19, 2010
Call to Order

1. Opening Comment
2. Last Call for Public Comment Sign Up

3. Approval of Minutes (September 21, 2010) Tab 1 - Action Item
Special Recognitions
1. West Virginia Public Employee Years of Service Awards: Nancy Parks, Barbara Pavel-Alvarez, and
Sarah Hensley
Operation Reports
1. President’s Report (Doreen Larson)
2. Faculty Assembly Report (Brian Floyd)
3. Classified Staff Report (Mary Jo Rutherford)
4. Student Government Report (Alicia Nieman)
5. Off Campus Programs Report (Jeani Hawkins)
6. Center for Workforce Education Report (Paul Schreffler) Tab 2 - Informational
7. Foundation Report (Devanna Corley)
8. Alumni Association Report (Emily Swain)
Committee of the Whole
1. Financial Report (Dale Bradley) Tab 3 - Informational
2. Policy 25 — Salary Policy (Jenrifer Weist) Tab 4 — Action Item
3. Capital Projects Update (James Decker) Tab 5 — Infermational

Committee Reports

1. Finance Committee (Kyvle Hamilton)

* Bond Audit Reports for FY 2010 (Dale Bradley) Tab 6 — Action Item

o Approval of One-Time Salary Enhancement (Dale Bradley) Tab 7 — Action Item

e Approval of Recommended Budget Changes to Tab 8 — Action Item
Unrestricted and Restricted Funds for Fiscal Year 2011(Dale Bradley)

o Folklife Center — Phase Il Design (Dale Bradley) Tab 9 — Action Item

2. Off Campus Operations Committee ( )

3. Marketing Committee (Dixie Copley)

New Business

Old Business

1. Board Retreat — December 10, 2010 (Jennifer Weist)



Upcoming Events

s Folklife Center Ribbon Cutting Gala: October 28, 2010 at 3:00pm
e Chamber of Commerce Reception for the Larsons: November 17, 2010- 5:30pm — 1-79 Research Park (ISR)

Public Comment

Possible Executive Session

moved pursuant to 6-9A-4(b)2A of the WV Code that the Board shall go in to Executive
Session to discuss personnel and personnel matters, which if discussed in public might adversely affect
the reputation of any person.

moved pursuant to 6-9A-4(b)9 of the WV Code that the Board shall go into Executive
Session to consider matters involving or affecting the purchase, sale or lease of property, advance
construction planning, the investment of public funds or other matters involving commercial
competition, which if made public, might adversely affect the financial or other interest of the state or
any political subdivision.

Next Meeting date is Tuesday, November 16, 2010 at the Falcon Center Board Room.






Pierpont Community & Technical College
BOARD OF GOVERNORS
MINUTES
September 21, 2010

Call to Order

A meeting of the Pierpont Community & Technical College Board of Governors was
held on September 21, 2010 beginning at 2:00 p.m. in Falcon Center Board Room.
Present at the meeting were Board Members: James Griffin, Dixie Copley, Earl
McConneli, Kyle Hamilton, Linda Aman, Rick Pruitte and Drew Kelly. Present by phone
were Beverly Jones, Sharon Shaffer and Eugene Weaver. Jeff Tucker was absent.

Chair James Griffin called the meeting to order.

Chair James Griffin and President Dr. Doreen Larson recognized Dr. Paul E, Edwards
with a Lifetime Service Award.

Chair James Griffin and President Dr. Doreen Larson recognized Leslie Lovett and Ryan
Houser for commitment and service to the Board of Govemors as faculty and student
representatives respectively.

Approval of Minutes

Chair Jim Griffin moved the minutes of the August 24, 2010 meeting be approved.
Motion carried.

President’s Report

Dr. Doreen Larson announced that Pierpont’s Full Time Equivalency was in excess of
2000 for the fall term. State funds are currently being sought in support of a Math and
Writing tutorial center and the much needed upgrades to fire suppression system in the
hangars at the Robert C. Byrd National Aerospace Education Center in Bridgeport.
Pierpont Priorities meetings have begun and will include discussion with faculty, staff
and students about strategic planning and accreditation, off-site presence and curriculum,
faculty and staff development, student retention and graduation, and the identity and
marketing of Pierpont. Discussions in the first Priorities meetings focused on broadening
our outreach, enrollment and graduation of students into new populations, particularly
those from low economic environments. Pierpont has been invited by the Higher
Learning Commission to participate as a selected college in the Pathways Pioneers
assessment and accreditation project. President Larson extended congratulations and
welcome to Drew Kelly, newly elected student Board of Governors representative. She
also congratulated Latiesha Meade, Faculty Assembly representative; Amanda Copney
and Trenton Johnson as the Pierpont Senate representatives; Tiffani Arthurs, Brandi
Campbell and Barbara Hendrey as Pierpont House representatives on their election.
President Larson shared with a Board a power point presentation designed to provide an
update on off campus and on campus signage. Dr. Larson also recognized the recipients
of the Paul E. Edwards Teaching Award who were present at the meeting including
Martha Jean Bolyard, Beverly Born, Leslie Lovett, Tom Stose, Les Boggess, Rosemarie
Romesburg and Linda King.



Constituent Reports

Brian Floyd presented the Faculty Assembly Report.

Mary Jo Rutherford presented the Classified Staff Report.

Alicia Nieman presented the Student Government Report.

Jeani Hawkins presented the Off Campus Programs Report.

Paul Schreffler presented the Center for Workforce Education Report.
Devanna Kelly presented the Foundation Report.

Emily Swain presented the Alumni Association Report.

Finance Report

Dale Bradley delivered the report on the Pierpont Community & Technical College
Unrestricted and Restricted Funds and Fund Manager Budgets for FY 2011.

Policy 54 — Bookstore Policy

Chair Griffin asked members if they had any questions concerning the public comments
received about the Bookstore Policy or about the suggested revisions made by staff in
response to those comments. Hearing none, Dixie Copley moved that the Board approve
Policy 54 — Bookstore Policy as circulated with additional revisions based on public
comment. Kyle Hamilton seconded. Motion carried.

West Virginia Governor’s Office Government Services Fund Grant Request

Dale Bradley presented information concerning a funding request that Pierpont
Community & Technical College has been invited to make from the Governor’s
Government Services Fund. Funds will be sought for two separate projects — one related
to funds needed to address the fire suppression needs at the Robert C. Byrd National
Aerospace Education Center and the other to establish a Math and Writing Tutoring
Center as a pilot project. Kyle Hamilton moved that the Board approve the completion
and submission of the grant requests. Motion was seconded by Dixie Copley. Motion
carried.

Capital Projects Update
Jim Decker reported on the summary of FY 2011 Capital Projects Completion status.
Finance Committee
Kyle Hamilton reported that the Finance Committee meetings will now be scheduled two
weeks prior to the Board of Governors meetings. Dates, times and locations of these
meetings are posted on the website.

Off Campus Operations Committee

No report.



Marketing Committee
Dixie Copley reported that the committee had met prior to the full Board meeting and
announced that Pierpont has established an independent marketing budget.

Old Business
Jennifer Weist announced that the dates being considered for the annual Board Retreat
are December 6-10, 2010 at Stonewall Resort. Governors will be contacted by email to
confirm availability. Final date and times will be announced.

Adjournment

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m.






Woridorce Development - Project Portfolio / Status Report

October 2010 — Board of Governors Meeting

Annual Performance Indicator Report

L’

%+ Present seven-year trend analysis
.7

% Data points will change with new master plan / institutional compact objectives
and reporting

US DOL / WV GreenUp Grant

%  $5MM grant, awarded to WorkForceWV

Multiple partners identified in grant, of which, we are one
Management responsibility passed ic WVCTCS

Awarded a sub-grant for training project with WV Women Work in the amount of
$84,500

+ Potential for additional grant dollars, to be utilized in the areas of:
Placement services

Developmental education services

Retention services

‘Greening Up’ curriculum in any content area
Train-the-trainer resources

Equipment resources

US DOE / Building Performance Grant

Awarded $250,000

Partnership with WV Northern Community College

Intent is to train persons to become BPI-certified (Building Performance Institute)
in building performance analysis

Training equipment has been ordered, through WVNCC, the fiscal agent for this
grant

« Classes to begin in November

*

53

S

e

S

S

.o

YVVYVYY

.
0.0

3

At

3

*

L/
0’0

Lumens Project

-

s+ Will switch all non-credit program and student management to this system on
January 1

Aerospace Company Project

< Intentis to offer a Board of Governors Degree for a cohort of incumbent workers
at regional corporate location

Offerings on a non-traditional schedule and pace

Project Charter signed by both parties

Open house sessions (3) for corporate staff have been planned, scripted and will
occur on Oct. 5 (iwo sessions, am and pm) and Oct. 8 (one session, am)

4 Portfolio development sessions planned and scheduled for third week in October

e

S

&
o

e

o

Mechatronics Program — WV Advance Grant

Awarded $220,000 over three years

Intent is to develop a mechatronics program, 1+1 Certificate/AS degree
Program coardinator hired, working to identify course content and sequence
DACUM performed 9/14/10

Will submit a program development grant to WVCTCS for review in November
Classes to begin August 2011

& RS - *
LS X X X

e

o

b

5




& & & <8 L & L 4 & 4 & L& L A&
& & & & FH & & & & & & & & &
& & & & BN oy & & & & ¢ & & & —
L 1 I3 1 O L 1 1 1 i1 1 1 o |
Sjuapnisg uolleanpy 00s IA0QE pue 0os L
BI040/, JO # (210 — BT ‘POAIDS SUBZIYD JO # |EI0 | mmmm
\/ 0001 goor |
Prin. B
\ /‘\ / oost P \\\ o 00sT |
00sz ) aosz | |
SlUapnlg uoljexnpy 221010AA JO # €101 oAO(e pue 8T .,_um?_mm SUaziljn Jo i |10l —
1 4 91 T £ sl 59 1Juawdo@aap |Is diysanauasdaiius 01 Suiuenad paiayo sdoysiiom pue $35IN0J PISNI0S JO Jaqunu [B10]
EEVOB brEFIT £08¢e8 068TL 78569 T99Ly 6EVEE {£T#) :pasanl@p sinoy (320]2) 1283UCD Bulutel) JO JBGUINU |BI0]
62T ¥2T1T 6531 9641 19T 961T 6V8T {£1) (xunodpesy paieaydnp) swesBosd Sujuies) 10 LONLINPI DJOPIOM BUIAIDDII $3]]0IUS JO JAQUUNY [RID ]
08 F44 Z€ Fi4 19 6 / {q91) :9315 JoAojdwa ue 18 paJayo sweldold/Sa5IN0D UPSII-UOU JO JBHUINN
€95 €T 20T 8 £7T £PT ozt {09t + qsT) :s4aAo|dwa ot pataal@p swesdosd Jujuiel] JO UDJ1BINPI 22U0HI0M 1IPRII-UOU JO JI2QUUNN
20T 606 1821 T09T 8191 T59 ££S wiesFoud 5318ep 91E21I1DI JRHA-IUO SUYI UBYY IDYI0 DILIYID 185 (|13 & Funa|dwes sjuapmis Jo Iaguiny
857 97 6/T Y4 /89 ¥5S €91 :5854n03/sweigord a89(|00 |eojUYDal pue ALUNWWIOD JP3JI-UcU Ul PI|0JUD 238 JO S1edA §Z-8T SIUSPNIS JO JAGIUNN
2601 619 98/ 518 +TI0T 1.5 0z9 sasnoa/swelsold 239103 [ea1Ul91 pue ANUNWILLGD JPSI3-UoL U] P||0Jud 33 Jo S1IEA br-GZ SIUSPNIS JO Jaquin
STOZ G6OT 180T +O6T €SLT 05ZT 5951 :sas5un03/swesBoud 1 pasd-uou a8a(|02 |e2|UYIBT PUE AJUNWMWIOT U PI||0JUR BADQE PUB ST DR SUIZIND JO JBQUINN
0T0Z-600Z | 6002-8007 | 8002-£00Z | £002-900¢ | 900Z-500Z | S00Z-F00Z | #OOZ-E00T AHO931% Yivd

sisAjeuy puaal 1BaA-/ - Wawnedaq volieanp3 Suinuiluo) - 1oday J01E2IPU] ISUBWIOLI - 939(|10) jeNUYID) 7§ Ajuntutuo) juodiald







Board of Governors
Financial Report FY 2011
Pierpont Community & Technical College
as of September 30, 2010

NEW LOOK

The “Look” of the finance reports has been madified slightly in hopes to provide a more easily
understood and comprehensive picture of the finance status of the institution. The changes
from the previous reports are as follows:

1. Added a column to the report identified as “Approved Budget” that reflects the
originally approved budget for FY 2011. This allows for a quick comparison with the
“Current Budget” and how the budget has changed from the original.

2. Calculation of Operating Income {Loss) prior to incorporation of Nonoperating Revenue
(Expense). This provides for a quick view of how the institution stands based purely on
operating revenues.

3. Simplified the title of the “Excludes” to “Transfers & Others” which more accurately
reflects what occurring in this category of activity. Also included is a clear reporting of
when the one-time use of reserves has been incorporated into the budget plan by
adding that line as a reported item.

4. Additional footnotes to the Current Unrestricted Report. The first footnote identifies
clearly the OPEB liability of the institution and the importance the future of this liability
has for the institution. The second footnote calculates the percentage the “Unrestricted
Net Assets” balance as a part of the budgeted total operating expenses and compares
where the institutions is currently to the target level established by management.

5. Added various charts to aid in the overall understanding of the budget. The additional
charts in order of appearance are as follows:

a. “Current Unrestricted / Restricted Revenue Budget” pie chart that graphically
represents the overall planned sources of revenues for the institution.

b. “Current Unrestricted / Restricted Revenue Budget to YTD Actual Revenue” bar
chart that graphically compares actual YTD revenues to budgeted amounts.

¢. “Current Unrestricted / Restricted Expense Budget” pie chart that graphically
represents the overall planned expenditures for the institution.

d. “Current Unrestricted / Restricted Expense Budget to YTD Actual Expense” bar
chart that graphically compares actual YTD expenses to budgeted amounts.

Unrestricted Funds: _

The projected effect on net assets at June 30, 2011 as of August 31, 2010, inclusive of state
federal stimulus stabilization funds, is $244,401. This is a decrease of {-$65,181) from the
August 31, 2010 Finance Report. This decrease is due primarily to an update that was done to
the benefits budgets. This update had not been completed since May 2010. As of this report
date, fall enrollments are in place and approximately 50% of projected tuition and fees revenue
has been realized and approximately 41% of overall revenues. No revenues from services
charged back to the University nor any expenses charged back from the University have been

- e e
e e ™™ e

PCTC BOG - Sept. 30, 2010 Finance Report Pagel



recorded. The primary budget changes that impacted the budget from the August 31, 2010
Report are as follows:

* Operating Revenues Budget:
o Increased by $97,734. This was due to three actions:

= Additional revenue projected for the English as a Second Language
program of $75,000. ’

= Additional Support Services Revenue of $8,109 projected as a result of
the benefits budget update.

= Additional revenue projected for the Child Care Laboratory Pre-School
program of $18,338 from a services contract with the Marion County
BOE.

e Operating Expenses Budget:
o Increased by $157,218. This was due primarily due to the three actions:
= |ncrease in salaries of $76,979. This increase was due primarily to the
increased labored needed as a result of the additional revenue
recognized by English as a Second Language and the Child Care
Laboratory Pre-School.
= Increase in Benefits of $47,493. This increase is related to the above
labor increase and the benefits budget update that was completed.
= Increase in the Assessment for Support Services of $33,482. This
increase was because of the benefits budget update that was -
completed.
s Non-Operating Revenues
o No changes during this reporting period
» Transfers & Other
o Increase in Capital Expenditures of 55,697 for computing equipment for the
School of Health Careers.

Of the projected effect on net assets of $244,401 as of June 30, 2010; President’s Controlled
Fund(s) are projected to have a budget surplus of $181,785, Fund Manager's Controlled Fund(s)
are projected to have a budget surplus of $62,615. The Actual Year-To-Date Budget Balance is
$3,667,357.

Restricted Funds:

The budget balance reflects a deficit of ($739,572). This deficit is covered by grant funds cash
balance of $1,455,695. The primary funding sources in the restricted funds are financial aid and
state and federal grants.

- e
R R R Ry —e—e.—..—....eeee e e ™™™ ™™™ ™™™ ™  —-—-——--m .

PCTC BOG - Sept. 30, 2010 Finance Report Page 2



Pierpont Community & Technical College
Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Current Unrestricted
As of September 30, 2010

Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current
Budget Budget Actual Budget
OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 7,623,362 7.822,462 3,059,341 50.62
Faculty Services Revenue 1,502,589 1,502,589 0 0.00
State/Local Grants and Contracts 0 1] 0
Auxiliary Enterprise Revenue 1,135,737 1,135,737 641,067 56.45
Operating Costs Revenue 208,947 205,234 1] 0.00
Support Services Revenue 422,098 432,411 [} 0.00
Other Operating Revenue 242,155 271,409 35,433 13.06
Total: 11,134,387 11,369,841 4,635,842 4077
OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 5,624,599 5,793,867 937,849 16.19
Benefits 1,222,128 1,291,258 176,831 13.69
Student financial aid-scholarships 305,588 305,588 31,302 10.24
Utilities 0 0 194
Supplies and Other Services 1,625,463 1,689,249 357,200 21.15
Equipment Expense 137,061 136,308 57,570 42.21
Loan cancellations and write-offs 0 0 0
Fees retained by the Commission 104,619 104,619 26,155 25.00
Assessment for Faculty Services 1,268,259 1,272,439 0 0.00
Assessment for Support Services 3,802,533 3,932,259 0 Q.00
Assess for Activity, Cap. & Debt Ser Costs 1,436,513 1,436,513 460,557 32.06
Assessment for Auxiliary Fees & Debt Service 1,135,737 1,135,737 431,950 38.03
Assessment for Operating Costs 2,375,530 2,391,073 0 0.00
Total: 19,138,030 19,488,999 2,479,699 12.72
OPERATING INCOME / {(LOSS) {8,003,143) (8,119,158} 2,156,143 -26.56
NONOPERATING REVENUE State Appropriations 7,683,748 7,683,748 1,536,750 20.00
{EXPENSE) State Fiscal Stabalization Funds 659,694 659,694 4] 0.00
Gifts 1,000 1,000 0 0.00
Investment Income 97,194 97,194 2,569 2.64
Reappropriated State Funding 0 22,217 0 0.00
Total: 8,441,636 8,463,853 1,539,319 18.19
TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures 1} (27.914) (28,742) 102.97
Transfers for Fin Aid Match {78,992) (78,892) 0 0.00
Indirect Cost Recoveries 0 6,612 838 9.64
Transfers - Other o] 0 0
One-time use of reserve 1] 0 0
Total: {78,992) {100,294} (28,105) 28.02
BUDGET BALANCE 359,501 244,401 3,667,357
PERSONNEL BUDGET SAVINGS [ 0
PROJECTED EFFECT ON NET ASSETS AT JUNE 30 359,501 244,401
* Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 4,444,028 4,444,028
Less: USE OF RESERVE ] []
** Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 4,803,529 4,688,429

-

Projected Nat Assats - Beginning of Year is before cumulative OPEB liablily at June 30, 2010 in the amount of $1,255,323,
Beginning Net Assels balance is unaudiled as Audit conlinues through October 2010,

-

Unrestricted Net Assat Balance Is 26.556% of the current budgeted fotal operating expense. Management has established a target of 15% or $2,752,989
as the goal for the level of unrestricted net asset balance that should be mainteined.

FZRPRO3 Funds%
10/7/2010 Page 1



Pierpont Community & Technical College
Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Current Unrestricted - President
As of Septernber 30, 2010

Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current
Budget Budget Actual Budget
QOPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 6,897,862 6,972,862 3,648,952 52.33
Faculty Senvices Revenue 1,502,569 1,502,589 \] 0.00
State/Local Grants and Contracts o] 0 o}
Operating Costs Revenue 208,947 205,234 o 0.00
Support Services Revenue 422,098 432,411 0 0.00
Cther Cperating Revenus 123,083 123,083 19,010 15.44
Total: 9,154,579 9,236,179 3,667,962 38.71
OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 5,470,620 5,581,937 879,241 15.75
Benefits 1,192,238 1,247,274 168,884 13.54
Student financial aid-scholarships 305,588 305,588 31,302 10.24
Utilities 0 0 194
Supplies and Other Services 1,098,724 1,087,204 248,712 22.87
Equipment Expense 57,042 57,042 26,782 46.95
Loan cancellations and write-offs 4] 0 0
Fees retained by the Commission 104,619 104,619 26,155 25.00
Assessment for Faculty Services 1,268,259 1,272,439 i} 0.00
Assessment for Suppoit Services 3,902,533 3,932,259 0 0.00
Assess for Activity, Cap. & Debt Ser Costs 1,436,513 1,436,513 460,557 32,08
Assessment for Operating Costs 2,375,530 2,391,073 0 0.00
Total: 17,211,666 17,416,037 1,841,826 10.58
OPERATING INOCME J (LOSS) (8,057,087} {8,179,859) 1,826,135 -22.32
NONOPERATING REVENUE State Appropriations 7,683,748 7,683,748 1,538,750 20.00
(EXPENSE} State Fiscal Stabalization Funds 659,604 659,694 0 0.00
Investment Income 97,194 97,194 2,569 2.64
Reappropriated State Funding 0 22,217 0 0.00
Total: B,440,636 8,462,853 1,539,314 18.19
TRANSFERS & OTHERS Capital Expenditures 0 (22,217) (23,045) 103.73
Transfers for Fin Aid Match (78,992) (78,992) 0 0.00
Transfers - Cther 0 0 0
One-time use of reserve 0 0 ]
Total: (78,992) {101,209) (23,045) 22.77
BUBDGET BALANGE 304,557 181,785 3,342,409
* Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 3,960,686 3,960,687
Less: USE OF RESERVE o a
Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 4.265.243 4,142,472

L]

Projected Nef Assefs - Baginning of Year is before cumudative OPERB liablity at June 30, 2010 In the amount of §$1,255,323
Beginning Net Assets balance is unaudited as Audif continues through Oclober 2010,

FZRPRO3 Funds%
10/8/2010 Pagel



Pierpont Community & Technical College
Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Current Unrestricted - Fund Manager
As of September 30, 2010

Approved Current YTD YTD Actual to Current
Budget Budget Actual Budget

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees 725,500 849,600 310,380 36.53

Other Operating Revenue 119,072 148,326 16,423 11.07

Total: 844,572 997,926 326,813 3275
OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 154,079 211,930 58,608 27.65

Benefits 28,890 43,984 7,948 18.07

Supplies and Other Services 526,739 601,955 108,578 18.04

Equipment Expense 80,020 79,356 30,789 38.80

Loan cancellations and write-offs 1] 0 0

Total: 790,728 937,225 205,923 21.97
OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS) 53,844 60,701 120,890 199.16
NONOPERATING REVENUE Gits 1,000 1,000 0 0.00
{EXPENSE) .

Total: 1,000 1,000 0 0.00
TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures 0 (5,697) (5,697)

Indirect Cost Recoveries 0 6,612 638 9.64

Transfers - Other 0 0 0

One-time use of reserve 0

Total: [} 915 (5,059) -553.06
BUDGET BALANCE 54,844 62,615 115,831

Add: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year 722,452 722,452

Less: USE OF RESERVE : 0 0
Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 177,296 785067
FZRPRO3 Funds%

10/8/2010 Page 1



Suipuny ajeis parepdotddesy m
SLUODU| JUSWIS3AL) I

SHom

Spung UoNEzZI|EQRIS [B35]d D1R1S M
suoieudosddy s1eis W

anuaaay Funessdo 1310 m
anuaasy saciaes poddns m
anuaAay 51507 duiesado m
SNURASY SRS AlnJed I

$984 pUB UOIHNL m

193png SnuaAay pajIs3Iun 1uBLIN) Bujpuny sjels paseldosddeay

B %E0'T
%TLS Bnuanay s1s0) Bunesado

anuaaay asudialug Aeyxny

%81¢C
BNUBASY 5901J3% Joddng

%L, e
INUBATY $321UBS Ay noed %BLE'T

anuanay Funesadp Yo

%ELBE
suopedorddy a3e)s

WEV'6E
5394 pUE Uo[uN

%EOQ
$OLIBAIRY 3507 1I24]puU|

%EEE
SpunJ uoHezI|eqels |easld s1el

%110 %610 %T0°0
SLIQIU] JUSWIISBALY| SIS




&
a%o& ol & &
@v/ o ea&/w s,w.o S5 Y ,.ve/// &
P ad S oS P o $ & o o
° & ) & 5 & & o N A
& 2 5 o st & K » »° & &
£y & o & & Ol & o & & R
& & S S & @ & ® ® ® &
NG 8 & £ & o F N & & & N
e > 3 g & ¥ £ & £ £ S &
L ). 1 1 ! | , .
E ’ 0
8€9 o] ' 695°C ooco't O 1] 1} o]
FACK: [AXA44 )
¥6T26 BOFTLT ; YET'SOL ¥
.vmmdmo T ZEY
£90"T19 -
r 000'000°T
LEL'SETT
05£'9E5°T 685°705°T
- €00000C
1ENPY 1A m + 000‘000E
198png Juainy
p— -~ 000000
TPE'6S6'E
- 000°000°S
- 000°0009
000000°L
e cov'ees’t 0000008
SNUBAJY |BNIOY (LA 01 193png
SNUIAIY pP3IISaIUN JuU3LIN)

000000'6




%ES0 .
. UOJSS|UWIOT 313 AQ PALIEII §994 %er'e
%0L°0 §201A138 AYnaed Joj JUaLLSSIssY

asuadxy juawdinb3

%798
S3IAIBS JAYLD pue sayddng

%L0°02

%aST 532|A19S poddng 1o} Juswssassy
sdiysIR|0Y25-PE |EPUBLY JURHNE

%659

Eal:] I U3 10} S1aisUed
YIeW PIV Ul 10} S13SUBLL K SyyouUdg

salnypuadx3 |ende] |

51507 JunesadQ Jo) WUBLUSSIESY 1§

8I[AJIDS 1q3(] ¥ $594 AJBl)IXNY JOJ JUSLUSSASSY W
$3507) 135 130 3 *de) ‘ANAIY 1o ssassy
533)Ala5 Hoddng 4o} Juswssassy |

SIAIG AYNIES 20) JUSILSSHESY W

SHEE'L
@suadx3 Juawdinby i 1505 1as w1208
$32JAIDS JaYlQ pue saddnsm -de *ALARDY Joj S5assY
sdtysiejoyas-ple [epPUBLY JUBEMIS B
supeusg |
SELRES W
%6E'L
51500 Jag 1990 %
%L5'6T e
LEIN-N=T de) ‘Alnioy 1oy ssassy

%oT'et
51500 Fujlesad JoJ Ju3WESassy

%0P0-
YIIRIA PIY Ul4 10§ SI3jSURLY

%T0-
sarnypuadxy |eyden

193png asuadx3g pajoLsaIun usLIND




& &R S ,%y %o,w
34 & & 2 ] W
#%v o.uov g o&v 004 ,vz«_r
n.v.u tal J.v .ﬁv A_v > .00_# J;va.
& & o > & & ol e
;V/wv > ¥ ...ﬂ.. G N o~ 2/
A A e 3
N & 3 £ $ S &2 o ® ki &
¢ & » R & & v oF & & ¢
g @ &% ' & Fg & & & o N

L ... e 1 B

(eve'se) 0 5192 045'L5 |

(z65°3L) (b16'22) 6I9°P0L 86E'9ET

06T°LSE

BBSSDE

LEL'SET'T
ET59EYT

GEF'TLE'T
6vZ'685°T

B5ZT6TT

6¢8'7E6

BNy QLA
3@3png juaumn) m

EL0'EGE'T

652°TE6'E

asuadx3y |enPy gLA 03 395png
9suadx3 pa3d141s34un JudLIN)

£98E6L'S

{000000"T)

000°000'T

000'000'

000°000°€

000'000't

a00'000°s

000'000'9

0000002




Board of Governors
Financial Report
Pierpont Community and Technical College
Restricted Fund
For the period as of September 30, 2010

New Grant Funds

Barnes & Noble Scholarship $3,500.00

Net Change 0.00

The budget balance of ($739,572) is covered by the restricted fund cash balance of $1,455,695
on June 30, 2010.

10/8/2010 Pierpont Restricted Narrative as of September 30, 2010.xl5x



PIERPONT COMMUNITY AND TECHNICAL COLLEGE

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses
Current Restricted

As of September 30, 2010

OPERATING REVENUE Tuition and Fees
Federal Grants and Contracts
State/Local Grants and Contracts
Private Grants and Contracts
Other Operating Revenue

Total:

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries
Benefits
Student financial aid-scholarships
Utilities
Supplies and Other Services
Equipment Expense

Total:

OPERATING INCOME / (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUE  Federal Pell Grant Revenues
{EXPENSE)
Total:

TRANSFERS & OTHER Capital Expenditures
Transfers for Fin Aid Match
Indirect Cost Recoveries
Transfers - Other

Total:

BUDGET BALANCE
* Add: PROJECTED RESTRICTED NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year

** Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year

FZRPRO3 Funds %
10/8/2010

Approved
Budget

101,000
14,127,178
2,400,453
567,000
50,500

17,246,131
826,924
138,299
22,234,369
100
751,849
85,289

24,036,830

{6.790,699)
6,000,000
6,000,000

(11,281)
78,002
{6.612)

0

61,099

(729,600)
1,459,063

120463

Current
Budget

101,000
14,127,178
2,353,510
570,500
50,500

17,202,689
871,014
132,868

22,211,420

100
681,952
104,856

24,002,209

(6,799,521)
6,000,000
,000,000

(12,431)
78,992

(6.612)
0

59,049

(739,572)
1,456,895

116123

YTD
Actual

12,741
5,776,899
1,201,413

232,303
8477
7,231,922
70,068
9,402
9,949,857
223
47,210
68,540
10,145,299

(2,913,377)

3,408,452

3,408,452

(1,800)
]

(638)
(2,438)

492,638

YTD Actual to Current
Budget

12.61
40.89
51.05
40.73
18.79

42.04
8.04
7.08

44.80

222.68
6.92
65.37
42.27

42.85

56.81

56.81

14.48
0.00
9.64

-4.07

Page 1



%ITO0T
SIRUCD pue SIURLD |B307/31R1S

%8909
S10BIUOD PUE SJUBJD) [BJBP3S

%Sr'T
SIIEIIUOD PUB SIUBIO F1BALLY
PIV [ERUBULY JO} $13SUBIL I

sanuaAay R |24 |eRpId W %ZT0
anuasay Supessdy BYlo
SIIBUOD PUE SIURID |eI0/a1B1S A
$10BJIUOD PUE SIURID |Brapad
$394 pue uonl m
%LLST

SanuUaAay JUeS) |jad [eLopad

%EY0
5334 puUe UGnL %YE'0
Pl jeIDUBUL JD} SJ3)SUR)

198png aNUAIY PIIIIIISAY JUBLIND




PIV [EISUBULS JO) SIBJSURI|

SANUAASY JURIS) [[3d [RIapay

anuasay Jupesadp aayip SI0BNUOD PUE SIUBID S1BAIL]  SI9BIJUG) PUB SIURIS (230770181 S3IRJIUOD PUR SIUBIS) [RIBPES

0 zes'sL

iiv'e

ousos " I
005°0£5 e

ETFTOT'T

DTS'ESE'T

ey QLA
193png JuaLIn] |

000'000°a

£33 pue uoinL

p
W pootor

SNUBADY |ENIIY (LA SA 195png

LTLZTPT

SNUIATY PBIdIIISIY JUaLIN)

000'000°Z

000000

000’0009

0000008

000°000°0T

000°000'ZT

000'000°T

000°000°9T




%IP'C6
sd|ysJE|DYDS-Ple [BAUBUY 1USPNIS

JBYIQ - s18gsueIl M
53J3A0I3Y 1500 1I|pYU| A
asuadx3 yuswdinby ;y
S32IAJBS JAYID pue saljddng m
samn e

sdiysJe|oyIs-ple [eaueul JUIpms A

s]|javed B
s31Jejes |
%00°C
%06'T
sad|alas Jaylg pue sa|ddns
%500 ren . %rb0
198png asuadx3 paiduIsay uan) saunupuatxa [E3deD %ED'0 %000 asuatxg uatdnbg

S3UBA0IBY 1507 1IBU(PU| —IBYIQ - SIB)SUBIL




sdiysiejoyss

JOIG - 529y5uRlL $31EN0IRY 1500 PPRIPY| sainupuadsy |e1jdey asuadxy yuswdjnby saspuag Jayig pue sajddng ~Ple |ejpueuy Juspnis siijsuag sajlejeg
¢ 0 SR WS Tevel ovsEe oy £z oot W' gog'zst wo: TR |
9SEPOT £55'969 1058
£59'6V6'6
|ENAY aLAA
1a8png waun) m
[ [{a31444

asuadx3 |end>y gLA 0} }98png
asuadx3 pajolIsay Jualin)

000000°S

000'000°0T

000'006°ST

00000002

000'000°52







Pierpont Community & Technical College Board of Governors

Meeting of October 19, 2010

ITEM:
COMMITTEE:

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:

STAFF MEMBER:

BACKGROUND:

Policy 25 — Salary Policy
Committee of the Whole

Resolved, that the Pierpont Community &
Technical College Board of Governors approves a
final version of Policy 25 — Salary Policy based on
the draft revision circulated for public comment and
modifications to this draft revision based on
comments received.

Jennifer Weist

The changes made to Policy 25 — Salary Policy are
intended to establish flexibility related to increases in
compensation for faculty, classified and non-classified
staff of Pierpont Community & Technical College.
Language was added to the policy allowing for across
the board and flat rate increases to be awarded to
employees on the recommendation of the President and
the approval of the Board of Governors.

The Public Comment Period was established from
September 10-October 11, 2010. The public comment
period was announced via campus email to faculty, staff,
students and staff members at the Council for
Community and Technical College Education. The
policy was also listed as a Draft Policy on the Board of
Governors page on the Pierpont website.

All comments received during the comment period were
prepared and circulated to members of the Board of
Governors and are available for public inspection in
Hardway Hall, room 203A.






Pierpont Community and Technical College
Board of Governors
Meeting of October 19, 2010

ITEM: FY 2011 Capital Projects Update
COMMITTEE: Committee of the Whole
INFORMATION ITEM

STAFF MEMBER: James DECkEl:

ATTACHMENTS: Summary of FY 2011 Capital Projects Completion Status.



CAPITAL PROJECTS

50.000.00 Expressions of Interest were recelved 8/27. A total of
Units (2) [ 10 firms responded to the advertisement
Byrd Center - Roof Expressions of Interest were received 8/27. A total of
Renewal $  400,000.00 - |% 40000000 10 firms responded io the advertisement
|$::lway Hall - HVAC $ 5847200 5{_5,47?_00- s - Project is complete
Hardway Hall _ Request for Expression of Interest s prepared and
Renovations $ 5,500,000.00 $ 5.500.000.00 ready to advertise
Hunt Haught Hall Glass . Contract has been finalized with design firm and project
Front $ 298,386.00 $ 238366.00 is currently in deslgn stage
Haugh Contract has been finalized with design d';ctg
Hunt Haught Hall - HVAC _ ntract has been fina with design firm and proje
Units $  500,000.00 § 50000000 Is currently In design stage E
S
o
Infrastructure - Havdway Project is substantially complete. Minor punchlist items
Halt $ 400,000.00 362,730.03 | $ 37,260.87 remain to be completed. -E
infrastruscture - IT . .
Emergency Back-Up $ 187,200.00 16.5?030 $ 180,740.0D0 | Purchase order has been finalized with design firm.
‘m‘[‘;““m” -Reteining | & 130,000.00 2,00000 s  121,000.00 Bids are due on October 13, 2010
Infrastructure - Retalning
|Wall Merchant Steet $ 175,000.00 350000 |% 171,500.00 Bids are due on Oclober 14, 2010
Turdey Genter . Request for Expression of Interest Is prepared and
IR atlons % 6,000,000.00 $ 6,000,000.00 ready 10 adveriisa
Wallman Hall . Request for Expression of Inferest is prepared and
Renovations $ 5,200,000.00 $ 5,200,000.00 ready to advestise
Infrastructure - Paving
Lat #15 $ 58,560.00 - ] £8,560.00
k]
|Locust Ayenue $ 40,000.00 - 8  40,000.,00 k-
]
et
)
|Musick Library Elevator |5 2,000,000.00 - $ 2,000,000.00 "6
=
Turley Center N
Renovations - FF8E $ $550,000.00 § 550,000.00
[Academic Fund $ 100,000.00 - |$ 100,00000 On-going - Numerous projects through-out year g)
o
Landscaping § 100,000.00 23,639.341%  763B0.66 On-going - Numerous projects through-out year c.)
=
ig“’;'w"g Plant-Smal  |¢ oooronols 3000561 |$  165,09430|  Ongoing - Numerous projects though-outyeer | O

$15,836,245.00

445,433,98 $15,440,811.02

1e/ef2010






Pierpont Community and Technical College

Board of Governors

Meeting of October 19, 2010

ITEM:
COMMITTEE:

- RECOMMENDED
RESOLUTION:

STAFF MEMBER:

BACKGROUND:

M

Acceptance of the Bond Audits

Committee of the Whole

Whereas, the Infrastructure Revenue Bonds 2002 Series B, Facilities
Revenue Bonds 2002 Series A and 2003 Series A, and Student Activity
Revenue Bonds 2003 Series B have been audited with no material
findings; and

Whereas, all three audit reports indicate thal debt coverage ratios have
been exceeded with debt coverage ratios of 175%, 243%, and 264%
respectively; and

Wliereas, the Board of Governors of both Fairmont State University and
Pierpont Community and Technical College recognize that they are bound

by all bond covenants and are legally obligated for the bond debt
paymenis.

Further, let it be resolved that these audit repotts be accepted as official
audited bond statements for the year ending June 30, 2010.

Dale Bradiey

We are required to have annual andits of these bonds.

PCTC BOG Oct. 2010 - Acceptance of the FY 20210 Bond Audits Pagel



DC30671873 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Ouly Angust 30, 2010
BCS_3396237_8.DOC To be retirned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not o be reproduced in any form without their permission 11:15 AM.

Bqard of Governors of Fairmont
State University

Infrastructure Revenue
Bonds 2002 Series B

Combined Special-Purpose Modified Cash Basis .
Financial Statements as of and for the

Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, and

Independent Auditors’ Report



DC30671873 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Ouly August 30, 2010
DCS_3396237 8.DOC- To be returned to Deloitte & Tonche LLP and not to be reprediced in any form without thelr permission  11:15 AM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the West Virginia Higher Education Pohcy Commission.
Charleston, West Virginia

We have audited the accompanying combined special-purpose statements of assets, Iiabilities, and fund
balance (deficit) — modified cash basis of the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University
Infrastructure Revenue Bonds 2002 Series B (the “Bonds™) as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the refated
combined special-purpose statements of revenues collected, expenses and costs paid, and changes in fund
balance {deficit) — modified cash basis for the years then ended. These combined special-purpose
financial statements are the responsibility of the Fairmont State University’s management. Cur

responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined special-purpose financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are frée of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of

_ internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal -
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining,

on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

As described in Note 1 to the combined special-purpose financial statements, these combined
special-purpose financial statements were prepared in connection with the related bond agreements and
are intended to present only the selected assets, liabilities, fund balances (deficit), revenues, and expenses
of the Fairmont State University required to be presented under these agreements. These combined
special-purpose financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, whichisa
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These combined special-purpose financial statements are not intended to be a complete
presentation of Fairmont State University.

In our opinion, such combined special-purpose financial staterents present fairly, in all material respects,
the combined assets, liabilities, and fumd balance (deficit) of the Bonds at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and its
combined revenues collected, expenses and costs paid, and changes in fund balance (deficit) for the years
then ended on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the West Virginia Higher Education Policy
Commission, the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University, management of Fairmont State
University and the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission, and the bondholders and should
not be used for any other purpose.

August 5, 2010



*SJUGTNOYE)S [RIOWRTT} SISEq (S0 pagIpomm ssodmd-jeroads pomIquiod 0} SI0T 935

6EZFLO'T $§  SEE$  POG'ELOT § PC8I0ZT S €L $  ISLIOTT § TVIOL
(19L°666°9) SEE (960°9669) (9P1°859°9) €L (617°859'9) FONVIVE (LID149Q) aNnNd
000°0L0°8 ¢ - 0000L08 § 000°098°. § - $  000098°L $ ssoupajqepu puog — STLLITAVIT
-(L1D143a) IONYIVE ANND ANV SALLITIaVLT
6ETHLOT $ mmg PO6°CLOT $ S8I0ZT $ €L ¢  18L'WOTT $ TYLOL
$06°€L0°T $06°€LO°T 13L°10T°1 18410271 ALISYHAINA TLVIS INOWIIVA 40 SINNQIIV
NI @THH AMNSYAIL TLV.LS HL HLIM SIISOdHd
Gee $ sggd - $ L $ €% - $ YNV TLSONL FHL HLIM SIISOddd
81388y
pauIquon pung pund peaulquio) pung pund
puog anuaaay puog INUTAIY
6902 glL0Z
600Z GNY 0L0Z ‘0 INNC 40 SV
SISvd HSVYD A3IJIQON — (Lio1430) FONVIVE
aNN4 GNY “SALLIHIEGYIT ‘S13sSV 40 SINIWILVLS 3S0diNd-Tviddds A3aNIGWOD
g SIIMAS Z00Z SANOE ANNIATY FUNLONULSVHANI
ALISHIAINN TLVLS LINOWHIVL 40 SHONYIAOD 4O Quv0od
WY STAH uorssnatad a1 MO WG (up W paonpoudad 2q 01 10U pUB JTT SYONROL P aNTOfa OF paLiyaL oq Af DOC'E LETIEEE 82

0102 '0¢ 1sn8ny

A[aQ sasodang noissSnasyy 10 — PeIq ATBOUIRL P00 JON/PUIaLAY JON £LBTLIOSDA



“SJURAIES [RPURLL SISeq ysed payipont ssodind-Teraads pauIqurod o} §3j0U 998

(19,6698 St€ $ (28096691 Gr1'3599)s €L $  (612'859°9)§ 123k Jo pug — FONVIVE (IID1JEA) AN
(€67935°L) 9651 (680°88S°L) (19£°566%) SEE {960°966'9) Jeaf go SuruwFag — FONV TV (LIDII9d) ANNI
- EEO'E6S (1£0°c68) - 996765 (996°26%) 5014195 98P JU2IMO JO Juawied 104 — OL (NOUL) SYIASNVIL
- (000°50T) 00060z - (000°012) 000°012 SANOY 40 INTNTIILTY
TEL'06S (z62°63%) ¥20'086 S19°%LEE (ggeesse) £80TL AVd SISO ANV SISNIIXH YAAQ
CLIOTTIOD SANNTATY 40 (AONAIDLINT) SSHIXT
3FE'66E £LO06E SLT'6 88LP0L S0E°€3€ 08v'1Z€ ) pred 53500 pue sosu2dxo [BI0L
SLT's cLTs 0508 ) 050'8 SATRLSIUIWDY
£LO°06E EL006E 20£°€3¢ R0£'€8E 1sa50uL
- OEFELE- 0SH'sIE 5asusdxs parR[el pUe UoHONNISUOD
- i - ssnddns pus yusmdinbg
{0V SISO NV SASNEIKH
030°066 18L 662°6%6 £0YTHOT 08 . EZETHOL P2109][0 SANUIAI [210],
18L 134 08 08 . SJEOUGSIAT U0 I53HIU]
662686 - $ 660686 § czeETHO'L 8 0 - $  ECETHOT § 9] 2MONYSEYUL
(JALIATTIOD SHNNIATT
pauquos punz pung PaLHGING) pung puny
puog anuaAsy puog anuaAey
6002 . 0L0Z

600Z GNY 010Z ‘0 INNr G3ANS SUVIA FHL HO4
sISve HSYD aFJIa0W — (LIDI4EK) IONVIVE ANNA NI STFONVHD ONY
dIvd S1S09 ANV SISNIdX3 ‘a3LoTTI09 SINNIATY 40 SLNTWILVYLS ISOdUNG-TVIOALS QIANIGWOD

g SAYIS Z00Z SANOE ANNIATY FANLONULSVHANI
ALISYIAINN 3LVLS INOWYIVA JO SHONYIAOD 40 Quvod

WV GIIT EShﬁ-EN&. Luu&u JROYIIM E....@ﬁ Aup uJ 3muzﬁe.~n.m.m aq 6y jou NB__B dTTaRoL» m.-.:&uﬁ. O] pawinias aq D.h UO.AH. wlbmﬂmmmmlmnvﬂ
0T0Z ‘0¢ 15030y KuQ sesodany HOISSTIOSK 104 — Pei( L1vupurery P2700 JON/PEOAI00XT 10N £LRTLOOSDA



DCS80671873 Not Proofrezd/Nat Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396237_8.DCC- To be returned to Deloitie & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their permission  11:15 AM

BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
INFRASTRUCTURE REVENUE BONDS 2002 SERIES B

NOTES TO COMBINED SPECIAL-PURPOSE — MODIFIED CASH BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization — Fairmont State University (the “University™) is governed by the Board of Governors of
Fairmont State University (the “Board”). The Board was established by Senate Bill 653 (S.B. 653),
which was enacted by the West Virginia Legislature on March 19, 2000, and restructured public higher
education in West Virginia.

The Board’s powers and duties include, but are not limited to, the power to determine, control,
supervise, and manage the financial, business, and educational policies and affairs of the University; the
duty to develop a master plan for the University; the power to prescribe the specific functions and the
University’s budget request; the duty to review, at least every five years, all academic programs offered
at the University; and the power to fix tuition and other fees for different classes or categories of
students enrolled at the University.

S.B. 653 also created the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission, which is responsible for
developing, gaining consensus around, and overseeing the implementation and development of a higher
education public policy agenda. . -

During fiscal year 2008, House Bill 3215 was passed, which clarified and redefined relationships
between and among certain higher education boards and institutions. This legislation defines the
statewide network of independently accredited community and technical colleges. Effective July 1,
2008, the administratively linked cormunity and technical college of Fairmont State established its own
Board of Governors. The newly established Board of Governors of Pierpont Community &Technical
College (PC&TC) and the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University jointly agreed to a division
of assets and liabilities of Fairmont State effective July 1, 2009.

The Separation of Assets and Liabilities Agreement was made in accordance with the provisions of West
Virginia State Code — §18B-2A-7a {2008 supp.) which states as follows: -

(A} Any agreement to allocate system and institutional educational and general and auxiliary debt
service paymenis shall be consistent with the provisions of all applicable bond covenants.

The Agreement further specifies the following agreement in regard to bond indebtedness:
WHEREAS, there is currently outstanding the following bonded indebtedness;

(A) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College College Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 A
(the “Series 2002A Bonds”), issued in the principal amount of $18,170,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of August 1, 2002 (the “2002A Indenture”), with
WesBanco Bank, Inc., as Trustee (the “Bond Trustee™), and currently outstanding in the principal
amount of [$15,595,000] updated as of June 30, 2010;



DCS0671873 Not Proofread/Not Footed Prelimtinary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396237_8.D0OC- To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without théir permission 11:15 AM

(B) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College College Infrastructure Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 B
{the “Series 2002B Bonds”), issued in the principal amount of $2,310,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of August 1, 2002 (the “2002B Indenture”), with the
Bond Trustee and currently outstanding in the principal amount of [$7,860,000] updated as of June
30, 2010;

(C) Board of Governors of Faimmont State College College Facilities Revenne Bonds, Series 2003 A
(the “Series 2003A Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $13,320,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “2003A Indenture”),
supplementing and amending the 2002A Indenture, with the Bond Trustee and currently outstanding
in the principal amount of [$11,850,000] updated as of June 30, 2010;

(D) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College Student Activity Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 B (the
“Series 2003B Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $22,925,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “2003B Indenture™), with the
Bond Trustee and currently outstanding in the principal amount of [$20,385,000] updated as of June
30, 2018; and

(E) Fairmont State University Board of Governors Subordinate Facilities Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2006 (the “Series 2006 Bonds”; the Series 2002A Bonds, the Series 2002B Bonds, the Series
2003 A Bonds, the Series 2003B Bonds and the Series 2006 Bonds are hereinafter referred to
together as the “Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $8,500,000 pursuant to a Bond
Anthorizing Resolution adopted on May 3, 2006 (as supplemented and amended, the “2006
Resolution’; the 2002A. Indenture, the 2002B Indenture, the 2003 A Indenture, the 2003B Inderiture
and the 2006 Resolution, together with the other documents anthorizing, securing or otherwise
relating to the Bonds, are hereinafter referred to together as the “Bond Documents™), and currently
outstanding in the principal amount of [$7,306,452.73) updated as of June 30, 2010. )

and

WHEREAS, in addition to the statutory requirements deseribed above, the Bond Documents define the
College or University to include any successor thereto and, as such, bind both FSU and PCTC, and both
FSU and PCTC have copies of the Bond Docurnents.

and - : .

WHEREAS, the Bond Documents set forth controlling bond covenants and require pledged revenues,
and the intent of this document is to adhere to all existing and future bond covenants.

The Boards of Governors of both Fairmont State University and Pierpont Community and Technical
College recognize that they are bound by all bond covenants and are legally obligated for the bond debt

payments,

Basis of Presentation — The Bond Indenture (the “Indenture™) requires that the University maintain
certain accounts and fumds related to the Infrastructure Revenue Bonds 2002 Series B (the “Bonds™) and
that the University prepare annual financial statements that set forth the balances and activity in the
specified funds. The following is a description of the funds that the University is required to maintain
and to present in the form of financial statements:

Revenue Fund — The revenue fund accounts for pledged revenues and expenses and costs paid related
thereto and outstanding bonds.



, DCS0671873 Not Proofread/Not Footed Prelintinary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Ouly August 30, 2000
DCS_3396237 8.DOC” To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their pevmission 11:15 AM

Bond Fund — The bond fund accounts for the proceeds of the bonds and subsequent disbursement
thereof for their intended purpose and the payment of bond principal and interest.

These combined special-purpose financial statements do not constitute a complete presentation of the
assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses of the University, but present only the funds the
University is required to present in the combined special-purpose financial statements pursuant to the
provisions of the Ihdenture, _

In accordance with requirements of the Indenture, the accounting records for the Bonds are maintained
on the modified cash receipts and disbursements basis. Consequently, certain revenues and the related
assets are recognized when received, rather than when earned and certain expenses and costs are
recognized when paid rather than when the obligation is incurred, These combined special-purpose
financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting which is another
comprehensive basis of accounting required by the Indenture. The principal modification to the cash
basis of accounting is the recording of bond indebtedness. Consequently, as these are combined
special-purpose financial statements to comply with the Indenture, a Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) is not included in the combined special-purpose financial statements,

Deposits with the Trustee Bank as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, inclnde $73 and $335, respectively,
invested in a money market fund sponsored by an'investment company, the underlying assets of which
are securities of the U.S. government, its agencies, authorities, and instrumentalities.

Deposits with the West Virginia State Treasurer have been pooled for maximization of investment -
income. These deposits are combined with deposits of various other funds. Investment income on these _
depos1ts is allocated to the various funds based on the balances of these deposits at the end of the month .
in which the income was earned. -t

Fixed assets are not included in the combined special-purpose financial statements because they do not
represent financial resonrces available for expenditures, but are items for which financial resources have
been used. Title to and accountability for fixed assets remain with the University.

2. BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY INFRASTRUCTURE
REVENUE BONDS, 2002 SERIES B

In August 2002, $9,310,000 of the Bonds were sold. The Bonds were issued under the authority =~ _
contained in Chapter 18, Article 23 of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended, and the Bonds are
secured pursuant to the Indenture and Security Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2002, by and between
the Board and WesBanco (the “Trustee”). The Bonds were issued to (1) finance the costs of acquisition
and construction of improvements to the campus infrastructure and utilities, including the entranceways
to the University and the roads surrounding the University, and elecirical, water, and sewerage systems
(including reimbursements to the University as approved by Bond Counsel) and {2) pay the costs of
issuance of the Bonds and related costs.

The Bonds outstanding consist of $1,165,000 of serial bonds, with varying interest rates from 3.625% to
4.2% and mature serially from June 1, 2011 to June 1, 2015. Term Bonds of $2,115,000 and $4,580,000
bear interest at 4.8% and 5.0% and mature on June 1, 2022 and 2032, respectively.

Term Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity. The redemption prices are 100% of
the principal amount, plus acerved interest.



DCS0671873 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30,2010
DCS_3396237 8.D0C - To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not lo be reproduced in any form without their permission  11:15 AM

The Bonds are special obligations of the University and are secured by and payable from fees assessed
to students of the University held under the Indenture. The infrastructure fee assessed for both years
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, was $85 per full-time student and is subject to pro rata reductions for
part-time and summer-term students and for waivers required by West Virginia Code.

The Bonds shall not be deemed to be general obligations or a debt of the State of West Virginia (the
“State’’} within the meaning of the Constitution of the State, and the credit or taxing power of the State
or the University shall not be pledged therefor. The Bonds are fully insured as to principal and mterest
by the Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (FGIC).

The University has fixed and will assess and maintain just and eguitable fees, which shall at all times be
adequate to produce revenues sufficient to make the prescribed payments into the funds and accounts
created under the Indenture. The amount of the fees shall be revised from time to time to provide
revenues each fiscal year equal to at least 100% of the maximum annual debt service, For the years
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the University had revenues, as defined in the Indenture, which
approximated 175% and 166%, respectively, of the maximum annual debt service.



DCS0671873 Not Pronfread/Not Footed Prellminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only Aupust 30, 20107
DCS_3396237_8.DOC” To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and nol lo be reproduced in any form withont their permission  11:15 AM

A summary of annual aggregate principal, interest, and sinking fund payments is as follows:

2002 Series B
Principal Interest {Due
Fiscal Years Ending ' Payments Due June 1 and Grand
June 30 June 1 December 1) Total
2011 - $ 215,000 $ 375,958 $ 590,958
2012 225,000 368,164 593,164
2013 235,000 359,726 594,726
2014 . 240,000 350,620 590,620
2015 250,000 341,020 591,020
2016 . 260,000 . 330,520 590,520
2017 275,000 318,040 593,040
2018 290,000 304,840 594,840
2019 300,000 290,920 590,920
2020 315,000 276,520 591,520
2021 330,000 261,400 591,400
2022 345,000 245,560 . 590,560
2023 365,000 229,000 594,000
2024 ' 380,000 210,750 590,750
202s5. 400,000 191,750 591,750
2026 : 420,000 171,750 591,750
2027 : 445,000 150,750 595,750
2028 - 465,000 128,500 593,500  _
2029 490,000 105,250 595,250
2030 510,000 - 80,750 590,750
2031 : 540,000 55,250 595,250
2032 565,000 28,250 593,250
Total outstanding 7,860,000 5,175,288 13,035,288

Cumulative bonds retired and interest

paid through June 30, 2010 1,450,000 3,147,329 4,597,329

$9,310,000 $8,322,617  $17,632,617

3. OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Certain purchasing, accounting, and other administrative services are provided by other State agencies to
the University.

% % ok ok %k ok



DCS0671872 Procfread/Unprotected vd Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only ‘ 830710
DCS_3396235_8.DCC To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to e reproduced in any form withoul their permission 11:14 AM

Board of Governors of

Fairmont State University

University Facilities Revenue

Bonds 2002 Series A and 2003 |
Series A o -

Combined Special-Purpose Modified Cash Basis
Financial Statements as of and for the

Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, and
Independent Auditors’ Report



DC30671872 Proofread/Unprotected v4 Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only 8/30/10°
DCS_3396235_8.DOC - To be retimed (o Deloitte & Touche LLF and not fo be reproduced In any form without their permission  11:14 AM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the West Virginia Higher Bducatioﬁ Policy Commission
Charleston, West Virginia

We have audited the accompanying combined special-purpose statements of assets, liabilities, and fond -
balance (deficit) — modified cash basis of the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University _
University Facilities Revenue Bonds 2002 Series A and 2003 Series A (the “Bonds™)] as of June 30, 2010
and 2009, and the related combined special-purpose statements of revenues collected, expenses and costs
paid, and changes in find balance (deficit) — modified cash basis for the years then ended. These
combined special-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of Fairmont State University’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined special-purpose financial
statements based on our audits.

‘We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall combined special-purpose financijal statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our epinion.

As deseribed in Note 1 to the combined special-purpose financial statements, these combined
special-purpose financial statements were prepared in connection with the related bond agreements and
are intended to present only the selected assets, liabilities, fund balances (deficit), revenues, and expenses
of Fairmont State University required to be presented under these agreements. These combined
special-purpose financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These combined special-purpose financial statements are not intended to be a complete
presentation of Fairmont State University.

In our opinion, such combined special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the combined assets, liabilities, and fund balance {deficif) of the Bonds at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and its
combined revenues collected, expenses and costs paid, and changes in fund balance (deficit) for the years
then ended on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.



DCS0671872 Praafread/Unprotected vd Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only 8/30/10
DCS_3396235 8.DOC - To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced It any form without their permission 11:14 AM

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the West Virginia Higher Education Policy
Commaission, the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University, management of Fairmont State
University, the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission, and the bondholders, and should not

be used for any other purpose.

Angust 5, 2010



*SIUDUEAIE]S [RIOWBUIS SISeq Ysta payipow ssodind-eroads paurquios 0] 5a10U 8§

GFC'SOLY §  005°00TTE  PSY'6ES  S60'619T & BIVLIS §  00CO0TZS  G9CECS  GLOVIOE § TYIOL
(TsL63¢'cT) 005901 yso'6e  (S06%SESST) (Z68°0LT20)  005901c 6occc  (TzL00VveT) HONVTVE (LIDIHEQ) QNN
000'551°3T § - $ -~ §  000'ssT'ST § 000°SH LTS . - $ - 5 000'sHFLTS ssaupaigepu prog — STLIMEVIT
{L12145¢)} 2ONVIVE GNNS ONY SIELIEYIT
!

SPTCOL'Y §  005°90I'ZS  $S96ES  SE06IST § SPIPLIC §  QDS'O0TZS  69£'€eS  GLTPHDE § TVIOL

S60'619°C $60'619'C 6LTHH0E GLTHHO'E ALISUFAINA FLVLS INOWHIYY 40 SINQQIDY
NI ('TAH A¥NSYAIL ILV.IS AHL Hllw SHSOdId

PSIOFI'T & 00S°901°C¢  $S9°GES - [ 698°6ZIT §  00690ITE  69£'€LS - g MNVE S3LSMILL SHL HIM S1IS04aa
S1assY

pauqLo) pung pung puny psuquion puny pung pung
SAIBSDY puog BNUIAIY anessy puog BhudAeYy
BD)AIRT 1R WOALAS 10
6002 oLoz

6002 ONV 0102 '0€ INNT 4O SY
slsvd HSYD QIIAIoN — (L1D143a) AONVIVE aNnd
GNV ‘STLLITIEVIT ‘S13SSY 40 SINIFWILVIS 3S0d4MNd-TVIDEdS AINIGNOD

Vv SARITS €00 ANV V SIS 2002
SANOEG IANNIAIY SALLINIDVL ALISYUIAINN
ALISHIAINN ALVLS LNOWMIVA 40 SHONYIAOO 40 QdvOod

uprssiuLiad 4pai Iroyim wdof Qup u paonposdar 3q 0 jou pun T JYIRCL P SHIOIHT OF pawinad 24 of D08 SETO6EE Sda

WY P11
Ao sesodang ToIssnasI( 104 — 3J0AQE ATBUITURILY pA pajoayoxdugypeasoosy 7431290800

01/0%/8



“SjuALEIS [ejoRUL SIS Yseo payipowt ssodind-jersads pauiquios 0) Sajon 0ag

00590128 ¥$9'6¢

(18L°63E°E0)8 ¢  (soesescn)s (ZeR'0LzTDIS  005901TE 69t §  (T1TL00VYE)S
(T PEPT) 005°901'T 97985 (6¥5'680'9T) (T5L63E°50) 0059012 $S96E (so6°sES"5TY

- {LSh'esd 169080 eT'Le6'T) - @1z'om 25'pR0'T (o¥z'2e0°D)

- (000°069) 000069 - (o0g0tL) 00001L
0LIPELT LSH'ES (c99'60¥'1) 3L8°09¥'C 668°RI1°I 212°9% (erL'o6g’l) PP EOr'T
0F6'68E Y - 606TIV1 LEOLLET 629°8LTY - GE0T6ET 065°288°T
606 1T 606 TIP'E 6E0I6E'T GE0TI6E1
662'361 662°361 69511 698 1L
TLs'sel TLESTT QLESHT 0L6'SHL
165°6L1 165°6L1 108°SLT . 108'5L1
60¥ 886 604386 102693 L0T'698
STO'LOY ST0'LO¥ 01L'EEY OTEEEP
151°3L0°1 ISTRL0°T EELSYT'T EEL'BPTT
9[9'pTSS Ls¥'es wee SI6'LEr'S S7S'L6E'S $12'9% 952 PIO'ISES
L9y STl LSV'ES we'e 99L°9¢ 195755 81T 9 96T L¥0'6
861'LE 861°LE Y66'6E 766'6€
1S6°19¢'s  § - £ ~ §  156°19¢% § £L6T0E'C & - $ - $  ELETOES §
pBUIGWo: pung pung pung paujquion pungj pund pung

PALDSDY puog EETET DALISIN puog anuaasy
AR 19 VMAIRG 3904
6002 117114

Teak 30 pug — FONVIVE (LIDHA) ANnd

1804 jo SuprinBag — FONVTVE (L1480 AN

29TATIS 1G3P

JuaLing 3o Juswfed 100 — OF (WOUD SUTASNVHL

SANOY 20 INIWTILLTE

Qarvd $1500
ANV SESNIIXE Y9AD FI0ITION
SANNIATI J0 (AINTIDIE) §STOXH

pied 1502 pue 5a5uUadXD [RIOL

152291u]

uononnsuc)

sorddns pue Juawdinbg

suonrIse pue sieday

DANBTSIUIWPY

sapNnn

siyauaq sakofdws pue soue[eg
*AMVd S1SOD ANV SIASNILXH

PI09][00 SINUIA (210,

SJUSUNSIAUL U0 JSAU]

anuaasl Funerade 1ot

saa) Sursnoy pue Junjreg
AHLOATIOD SENNIATE

6002 ANV 01.0Z '0€ INNF AIANT SUVIA FHL ¥OA
SISVE HSVD a31iaoi — (L19143a) IONVTVE NN NI SIDNVHOI aNvY

‘divd $1S09 ANV SASNIJX ‘A3LOTTI00 SANNIAIY 40 SLNIWILVLS SOUNG-TVIOIdS GANIGWOD

AV P11

o1/0¢/8

V SHIY3S €002 ANV V S3143S 200¢
SANO4G INNIATY SALLMIOVA ALISHIAINN
ALISYIAINN 3LVYLS LINOWHIVL 40 SHONUIAOD 20 qdvod

uopsstLad 01843 DYIIM ULIGS Aup U pasnpoldal 3q 0] jou puv JTT HHoNaf B SFI0I( o1 pauinad aq o, ACK'S SEZ96EE SOd
AquQ sesodang uoissnasy( 10 — PeI([ AR

A prIdojoxdup)/prAeosd ZL81.90500



DCS0671872 Provfread/Unprotected vd Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only §/30/10
DCS_3396235_8.DOC- To be retirned to Deloitie & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their permission  11:14 AM

BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
UNIVERSITY FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS
2002 SERIES A AND 2003 SERIES A

NOTES TO COMBINED SPECIAL-PURPOSE MODIFIED CASH BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 39, 2010 AND 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization — Fairmont State University (the ‘“University™) is govemed by the Board of Governors of
Fairmont State University (the “Board”). The Board was established by Senate Bill 653 (8.B. 653),
which was enacted by the West Virginia Legislature on March 19, 2000, and restructured public higher
education in West Virginia.

The Board’s powers and duties include, but are not limited to, the power to determine, control,
supervise, and manage the financial, business, and educational policies and affairs of the University] the
duty to develop a master plan for the University, the power to prescribe the specific fonctions and
University’s budget request, the duty to review, at least every five years, all academic programs offered
at the University, and the power to fix tuition and other fees for different classes or categories of
students enrolled at the University.

S.B. 653 also created the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission, which is responsible for
developing, gaining consensus around, and overseeing the implementation and development of a higher
education public policy agenda. .

During fiscal year 2008, House Bill 3215 was passed, which clarified and redefined relationships
between and among certain higher education boards and institutions. This legislation defines the
statewide network of independently accredited comummnity and technical colleges. Effective July 1,
2008, the administratively linked community and technical coliege of Fairrnont State established its own
Board of Governors. The newly established Board of Governors of Pierpont Community & Technical

" College (PC&TC) and the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University jointly agreed to a division
of assets and liabilities of Fairmont State effective July 1, 2009.

The Separation of Assets and Liabilities Agreement was made in accordance with the provisions of Weést
Virginia State Code — §18B-2A-7a (2008 supp.) which states as follows:

(4) Any agreement to allocate system and institutional educational and general and auxiliary debt
service payments shall be consistent with the provisions of all applicable bond covenanis.

The Agreement further specifies the following agreement in regard to bond indebtedness:
Whereas, there is currently outstanding the following bonded indebtedness:

(A) Board of Governozs of Fairmont State College College Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 A
(the “Series 2002A Bonds”), issued in the principal amount of $18,170,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of August 1, 2002 (the “2002A Indenture”), with
WesBanco Bank, Inc., as Trustee (the “Bond Trustee™), and currently outstanding in the principal
amount of [$15,595,000] updated as of June 30, 2010;



DCS0671872 Procfread/Unprotected v4 Preliminary Drafi — For Discussion Purposes Only 8/30/10
DCS_3396235_8.DOC” To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not fo be reproduced in any farm without their permission  11:14 AM

(B) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College College Infrastructure Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 B
(the “Series 2002B Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $9,310,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of August 1, 2002 (the “2002B Indenture”), with the
Bond Trustee and currently outstanding in the principal amount of [$7,860,000] updated as of June
30, 2010;

(C) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College College Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 A
(the “Series 2003A Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $13,320,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “2003A Indenture™),
supplementing and amending the 2002A Indenture, with the Bond Trustee and currently outstanding
in the principal amount of {$11,850,000] ] updated as of June 30, 2010;

(D) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College Student Activity Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 B (the
“Series 2003B Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $22,925,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “2003B Indenture™), with the
Bond Trustee and currently outstanding in the principal amount of [$20,385,000] updated as of June
30, 2010; and

(E) Fairmont State University Board of Governors Subordinate Facilities Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Series 2006 (the “Series 2006 Bonds”; the Series 2002A Bonds, the Series 2002B Bonds, the Series
2003 A. Bonds, the Series 2003B Bonds and the Series 2006 Bonds are hereinafier referred to
together as the “Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $8,500,000 pursuant to a Bond
Authorizing Resolution adopted on May 3, 2006 (as supplemented and amended, the “2006
Resolution”; the 2002A Indenture, the 2002B Indenture, the 2003A Indenture, the 2003B Indenture —
and the 2006 Resolution, together with the other documents authorizing, securing or otherwise
relating to the Bonds, are hereinafter referred to together as the “Bond Documents™), and currently
outstanding in the principal amount of [$7,306,452.731 updated as of June 30, 2010. )

and

Whereas, in addition to the statutory requirements described above, the Bond Documents define the
College or University to include any successor thereto and, as such, bind both FSU and PCTC, and both
FSU and PCTC have copies of the Bond Documents.

and

Whereas, the Bond Documents set forth controlling bond covenants and require pledged revenues, and
the intent of this document is to adhere to all existing and future bond covenants.

The Boards of Governors of both Fairmont State University and Pierpont Community and Technical
College recognize that they are bound by all bond covenanis and are legally obligated for the bond debt
payments.



DCS0671872 Proofread/Unprotected v4 Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only 830110
DCS_3396235_8.DOC- To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their permission  11:14 AM

Basis of Presentation — The Bond Indenture (the “Indenture”) requires that the University maintain
certain accounts and funds related to the University Facilities Revenue Bonds 2002 Series A (“2002A
Bonds”), and the University Facilities Revenue Bonds 2003 Series A (“2003A Bonds™) (collectively, the
“Bonds™), and that the University prepare annual financial statements that set forth the balances and
activity in the specified fimds. The following is a description of the fimds that the University is required
to maintain and to present in the form of financial statements:

Revenue Fund — The revenue fund accounts for pledged revenues and expenses and costs paid related
thereto and outstanding bonds.

Bond Fund — The bond fund accounts for the proceeds of the bonds and subsequent disbursement
thereof for their intended purpose and the payment of bond principal and interest.

Debt Service Reserve Fund — The debt service reserve fund accounts for the required debt service
reserve fund activity,

These combined special-purpose financial statements do not constitute a complete presentation of the
assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses of the University, but present only the funds the
University is required to present in the combined special-purpose financial statements pursuant to the
provisions of the Indenture.

In accordance with requirements of the Bond Trust Indentures and Security Agreements (the
“Indentures™), the accounting records for the Bonds are maintained on the modified cash receipts and
disbursements basis. Consequently, certain revenues and-the related assets are recognized when received_
rather than when eamned and certain expenses and costs are recognized when paid rather than when the
obligation is incurred. These combined special-purpose financial statements are prepared on the

modified cash basis of accounting which is an other comprehensive basis of accounting required by the -
Indentures. The principal modification to the cash basis of accounting is the recording of bond
indebtedness. Consequently, as these are combined special-purpose financial statements to comply with
the Indenture, a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is not included in the combined
special-purpose financial statements.

Deposits with the Trustee Bank as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, include $2,129,869 and $2,146,154,
respectively, invested in a money market fund sponsored by an investment company, the underlying
assets of which are secuntles of the U.S. government] its agencies, authorities, and instrumentalities.

Deposits with the West Virginia State Treasurer have been pooled for maximization of investment
income. These deposits are combined with deposits of various other funds. Investment income on these
deposxts is allocated to the various funds based on the balances of these deposits at the end of the month
in which the income was earned.

Fixed assets are not included in these combined special-purpose financial statements because they do not
represent financial resources available for expenditures, but are items for which financial resources have
been used. Title to and accountability for fixed assets remain with the University.

2. BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY, UNIVERSITY
FACILITIES REVENUE BONDS, 2002 SERIES A AND 2003 SERIES A

In August 2002 and March 2003, $18,170,000 of the 2002A Bonds and $13,320,000 of the 2003A
Bonds, respectively, were sold. The Bonds were issued under the authority contained in Chapter 18,
Article 23 of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended, and the Bonds are secured pursuant to the



DCS0671872 Proofread/Unprotected v4 Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only 8/30/10
DCS_3396235_8.DOC- To be returned to Deloitle & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their permission 11114 AM

Indentures and Securify Agreements, dated as of August 1, 2002 and March 1, 2003, by and between the
Board and WesBanco Bank, Inc, (the “Trustee”). The Bonds were issued to (1) finance the costs of
acquisition of student housing facilities, consisting of an existing 113-unit apartment complex}

(2) finance the costs of design, acquisition, construction, and equipping of a new dormitory anticipated
to include approximately 400 units] (3) finance the costs of design, acquisition, and construction of a
new, approximately 1,000 space motor vehicle parking facilities, (4) establish a debt service reserve
fund for the Bonds, (5) capitalize interest on the Bonds, and (6) pay the costs of issnance of the Bonds
and related costs. .

The 2002A and 2003A Bonds outstanding consist of $2,240,000 and $1,725,000 of serial bonds,

respectively, with varying interest rates from 3.6% to 4.2%, and mature serially from June 1, 2011 to
June 1, 2015, and Term Bonds as follows: .

Principal ) Maturity Interest
Amount Date Rate
$4,125,000 June 1, 2022 5375 %
3,170,000 June 1, 2022 5.250
4,030,000 June 1, 2027 3375
5,200,000 Jane 1, 2032 5.000
6,955,000 June 1, 2032 5.000

The Term Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity. The redemption prices are

100% of the principal amount, plus accrued interest. _
The Bonds are special obligations of the University and are secured by and payable from certain pledged . _°
revenues of the housing, apartment, and parking funds of the University held under the Indentures. The -
Bonds shall not be deemed to be general obligations or a debt of the State of West Virginia (the “State™)
within the meaning of the Constitution of the State, and the credit or taxing power of the State or
University shall not bé pledged therefor. The Bonds are fully insured as to principal and interest by
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (FGIC).

The University has fixed and will maintain just and equitable rules, regulations, rents, charges, and fees
for the use and oceupancy of housing, apartment, and parking facilities (collectively, the “Facilities™).
The University must fix rents, charges, and fees to produce revenues from Facilities sufficient to pay
operating expenses and to make the prescribed payments into the funds and accounts created under the ™
Indentures, and that such schedule of rents, charges, and fees shall be revised from time to time to
provide for all reasonable operating expenses, and leave net revenues, when combined with other
monies legally available te be used for such purposes, each fiscal year equal to at least 110% of the
maximum annual debt service. For the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the University had net
revenues when combined with other monies legally available, as defined in the Indentures, that
approximated 243% and 222%, respectively, of the maximum annual debt service. Additionally, the debt
service reserve fund originally had deposits totaling $2,107,495 as required by the Indentures.
Subsequently, the Trustee reduced the 2003 A Bond requirements from $903,745 to $902,750. Deposits
held under the Debt Service Reserve Fund totaled $2,106,500 both at June 30, 2010 and 2009,



DCS0671872 Proofrend/Unprotected v4 Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only 830/10°
D(CS_3396235 8.DOC " To be retirned lo Deloitte & Fouche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their permission  11:14 AM

A summary of annual aggregate principal, interest, and sinking fiund payments is as follows:

Fiscal 2002 Serles A 2003 Serles A
Years Principal Interest (Due Principal Interest (Due
Ending Payments June 1 and Payments June 1 and Tota! Total Grand
June 36 Due June 1 December {) Due June 1 December 1) Principal Intesest Tolal
2011 § 415000 $ 785714 £ 320,000 $ 581,095 $ 735000 $ 1,366,809 $ 2,101,809
2012 430,000 770,670 330,000 369,575 760,000 1,340,245 2,100,245
2013 445,000 754,545 345,000 557,200 790,000 1,311,745 2,101,745
2014 465,000 737,301 360,000 543,745 825,000 1,281,046 2,106,046
2015 485,000 718,701 370,000 529,345 855,000 1,248,046 2,103,046
2016 500,000 698,331 385,000 514,175 885,000 1,212,506 2,097,506
2017 525,000 671,456 405,000 493,963 930,600 1,165,419 2,095,419
2018 555,000 643,238 430,000 472,700 985,600 1,115,938 2,100,938
2019 590,000 613,406 450,000 450,125 1,040,600 1,063,531 2,103,531
2020 620,000 581,694 475,000 426,500 1,095,000 1,008,194 2,103,194
2021 650,000 548,369 500,000 401,563 1,150,000 949,932 2,099,932
2022 685,000 513,431 525,000 375,313 1,210,000 838,744 2,098,744
2023 720,000 476,613 555,000 347,750 1,275,000 824,363 2,099,363
2024 765,000 437,913 580,000 320,000 1,345,000 757,913 2,102,913
2025 805,000 396,794 610,000 291,000 1,415,000 637,794 2,102,794
2026 845,000 353,525 640,000 260,500 1,485,000 614,025 2,009,025
2027 895,000 308,106 670,000 228,500 1,565,000 536,606 2,101,606
2028 240,000 260,000 705,000 195,000 1,645,000 455,000 2,100,000
2029 985,000 213,000 740,000 159,750 1,725,000 372,750 2,007,750
2030 1,040,000 163,750 780,000 122,750 1,820,000 286,500 2,105,500
2031 1,090,000 111,750 815,000 83,750 1,905,000 195,500 2,100,500
2032 1,145,000 57,250 860,000 43,000 2,005,000 160,250 2,105,250
Total .

outstanding, 15,595,000 10,815,557 11,850,000 7,967,299 27,445,000 18,782,856 46,227,856 __
Cumulative

bonds

retired and

interest

paid through

June 30,

2010 2,575,000 6,538,110 1,470,000 4,429.463 4,045,000 10,967,573 15,012,573

$18,170,000  $17,353,667 $13320,000 512396762  $31.490,000 $29,750429  $61.240,429

3. OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Certain purchasing, accounting, and other administrative services are provided by other State agencies to
the University.

L O O



DCE0471871 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Parposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396232_8.DOC To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not 10 be reproduced in any form without their permission 11:13 AM

Board of Governors of
Fairmont State University
Student Activity Revenue
Bonds 2003 Series B

Combined Special-Furpose Modified Cash
Basis Financial Statements as of and for the
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, and
Independent Auditors’ Report



DCS0671871 Net Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396232 §.DOC- To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their permission 1113 AM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commission
Charleston, West Virginia

We have audited the accompanying combined special-purpose statements of assets, liabilities, and fund
balance {(deficit) — modified cash basis of the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University Student
Activity Revenue Bonds 2003 Series B (the “Bonds™) as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the related
combined special-purpose financial statements of revenues collected, expenses and costs paid, and
changes in fund balance (deficit) — modified cash basis for the years then ended, These combined
special-purpose financial statements are the responsibility of Fairmont State University’s management.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined special-purpose financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to obfain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on'the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall combined special-purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As described in Note 1 to the combined special-purpose financial statements, these combined
special-purpose financial statements were prepared in connection with the related bond agreement and are
intended to present only the selected assets, liabilities, fund balances (deficit), revemes, and expenses of
Fairmont State University required to be presented under this agreement. These combined special-purpose
financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive
basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These combined special-purpose financial statements are not intended to be a complete presentation of
Fairmont State University.

In our opinion, such combined special-purpose financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the combined assets, liabilities, and fund balance (deficit) of the Bonds at June 30, 2010 and 2009, and its
combined revenues collected, expenses and costs paid, and changes in fund balance (deficit} for the years
then ended on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.



DCS0671871 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30,2010
DCS_3396232 8.DCC - To be returned o Deloitte & Touche LLP and not fo be reproduced in any form without their permission  11:13 AM

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the West Virginia Higher Education Policy
Commission, the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University, managements of Fairmont Siate
University and the West Virginia Higher Education Pohcy Commission, and the bondholders and should
not be used for any other purpose

Angust 5, 2010



“S]UetIa]e)s [RIOURTL §1SEq Useo pegrpow ssodmd-Te1oads peuiqmuod O s9j0u 225

EPLYO0T $ ¥98 ¢ 618€90°CT $ SE66YST § 0618  SHL6VST § TVLOL

(Lsz'csss1) #98 (1Z1%958°81) (590°6£8°LT) 061 (65Z°SEL’LT) ) FONVIYE (LIDIAHA) ANNI
000°026°02 § - $  000°0Z6°0T $ 000°53£°0Z $ - ¢ . 000°68¢°0T $ sssupsiqapul puog — SHILITIIVIT

{L101430) FONVIVE ANNd ANV S3LLIEYT

ErL'Y90T $ #9383 6L8°€90T $ mmm.mwmnm. $ 0618 SpL6PST § TV.LOL

648°€90°C 6L8°€90T SPL'6VS'T SYL'6VS'T ALISHHAING SLV.LS
INOWRIVA 40 SINNODOV NI dIdH
AANSVIIL ZLV.LS HHL HLIM S1ISOJdd

98 $ 988 - $ 061 $  06I$ - $ JNVE SEISONL FHIL HIIA SLISOdId
: SLIASSY
pauigwon puny pun. pauiquiog pung pund
pung ONUBAdY puog snuaAsy

6002 . 1]1:74

6002 ANV 010Z ‘02 ANNMr 40 SV
sisvd HSV2 aa1Ia0wW — (L12143a) IINYTVE AN
ANY ‘$3LLTIAVIT ‘SLISSY 40 SLNIWALVYLS ISOdNd-TVIOTdS A3aNIGNOD

g SHRIAS €002 SANOSF ANNIAIY ALIAILOY LNIANLS
ALISHIAINN FLYLS INOWHIVH 40 SHONHIAOD 4O quvos

WY E1ISTT wopsspread siayr inouss ol dup uy paonpoudad 2q 0] 104 pub ST 3YoN0, 3 SNNC)3(T 0F pauaniad o4 0F 2008 TETY6EE S0
010z *0¢ 18ndny Auo s3s0dang NOISSTOSKY 10,3 — LI LIBUIUE[a.y PRI00% JON/PEaIF0RIT JON 1281490800



“SyUGULae]S [eloweuL SISEq USed paripous asodind-eroads pauIquIos 01 $a10U 998

(L52'ccg3)s  +98 § (zr'esgenDs  (S90°9E8LDIS 061 [ (I AT WAL Jead Jo pud — HONVIVE (LIDLIAM aNNd
(£09°95L°61) o1 (LOLODL'GT) {L€T5C83T) $98 (1217958°81) . 12k Jo Sumuidad — JONVTVE (LIDIITCA aNng
- £86°CHS°1 (£86°chS'T) - 118%6¥5°1 (118%¥s°1) IAIRS
199p om0 Jo yuswiked tod — O NOUD SUHISNVEL
- (oo00z6) 000°0TS - {000'sES) 000°G£S SANO9 40 INTNTILLTY
9£106 (£8z'620°1) 629°0561 T61020°1 {s8p's10'T) LLY'SE0T dIvd S1S02 ANV SASNAIXH ¥IA0
QHIIDTTIOD SHNNTATY 40 (RINFISIHAT) SSTOXT
TLESELT 6T TE0°T 089'F9L 1 609298°C €69°10°T 916'9¥81 pred sjso3 pure sasuadxa 830,
SSPTRO'T TECTE0T €61°11 00¥5Z0°1 €69°C1G'T LOL°6 1591214]
90128 901°Z8 986°89 92629 : sojddns pue yowdmby
wmw”mm pER'ES £20°69 ' £20°69 suoprersie pue snedsy
£€9°T19 EE9°TI9 £99°10L £99°T0L SATIROSTIIUPY
8£5°0ZE 8£5°9TE 0L586Z 0L5°862 sanIn
OLE'RLO ) OLE'SLY L96°869 L9669 sifjauaq 2a£0]da pue salIRlES
1 :Ivd SLSOD ANV SHSNAJIXH
RIE°L6Y°E 600C 60£°569°E 108°288°¢ 80¢ £65°788°¢ P2322]100 SaNUIAAL (IO,
owmmu 600'C LLT9T < L6¥S 207 (T4 o SJUDUISIALY w0 381y
696°6LST 696'6L5°1 659°269° ) 659°259'T sagy Sugesedo
£90°680°T § - $  £590'680°CT § SHOpTTT § - $  sHvIIT § §eaf UoUN JUSPMS
IAALDTTION STANNTATS
peuIgWon pund puny "paujquos pund pung
puog INUIASY puog anuaasy
8002 aLoe

6002 ANY 0102 ‘0€ INNr A3GNT SYUVIA IHL A0
SISvVd HSVD G410 — (L191430) JONVIVE NN NI STONVHO UNV
‘GIvd SLSOD GNV SASNAJXE ‘a3L03T10D SINNIATY 40 SININALVLES 3S0dUNd-TYIITdS AANIGWOD

d S3143S €002 SANOEG ANNIAIY ALIALLDV INAANLS
ALISHIAINNM FLVLS LNOWHIVA 40 SHONYIA0D 40 quvod

WY ELT]  womsspiad oyl Jnoyns w.gf £up up paonpoidas aq o] 1ou pur JTT H{oN0L P 21j10]5(] 0 paimiat 8q of D0A'Y ZET96EE Sod
010Z *0g ¥sn8ny Aa sesodang uosssnasiq Jo — yuag Asunmpag P2100,] 10N/PEA00IY ION TLETLH0SDT



DCS0671871 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30,2010
DCS_3395232_8.DOC- To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be repraduced in any form withomt theiv permission  11:13 AM

BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY
- STUDENT ACTIVITY REVENUE BONDS 2003 SERIES B

NOTES TO COMBINED SPECIAL-PURPOSE MODIFIED CASH BASIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND 2009

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization — Fairmont State University (the “University”) is govemed by the Board of Governors of
Fairmont State University (the “Board™). The Board was established by Senate Bill 653 (S.B. 653),
which was enacted by the West Virginia Legislature on March 19, 2000, and restructured public higher
education in West Virginia.

'The Board’s powers and duties include, but ave not limited to, the power to determine, control,
supervise, and manage the finaneial, business, and educational policies and affairs of the University, the
duty to develop a master plan for the University, the power to prescribe the specific functions and
University’s budget request, the duty to review, at least every five years, all acadernic programs offered
at the University, and the power to fix tuition and other fees for different classes or categories of
students enrolled at the University. '

S.B. 653 also created the West Virginia Higher Education Policy Commuission, which is responsible for
developing, gaining consensus around, and overseeing the implementation and development of 2 higher
education public policy agenda. ) -

During fiscal year 2008, House Bill 3215 was passed, which clarified and redefined relationships
between and among certain higher education boards and institutions. This legislation defines the
statewide network of independently accredited commmunity and technical colleges. Effective July 1,
2008, the administratively linked community and technical college of Fairmont State established its own
Board of Governors. The newly established Board of Govemors of Pierpont Community &Technical
College (PC&TC) and the Board of Governors of Fairmont State University jointly agreed to a division
of assets and liabilities of Fairmont State effective Tuly 1, 2009.

The Separation of Assets and Liabilities Agreement was made in accordance with the provisions of West
Virginia State Code — §18B-2A-7a (2008 supp.) which states as follows: -

(4) Any agreement to allocate system and institutional educational and general and auxiliary debt
service payments shall be consistent with the provisions of all applicable bond covenants.

The Agreement further specifies the following agreement in regard to bond indebtedness:
WHEREAS, there is currently outstanding the following bonded indebtedness:

(A) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College College Facilities Revenue Bonds; Series 2002 A
(the “Series 2002A Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $18,170,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of August 1, 2002 (the “2002A Indenture”), with
WesBanco Bank, Inc., as Trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), and currently outstanding in the prineipal
amount of [$15,595,000] updated as of June 30, 2010;



DCS0671871 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396232_8.DOC - To be returned 1o Deloitte & Touche LLP and not fo be reproduced in anp form withoui thely permissien  11:13 AM

(B) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College College Infrastructure Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 B
(the “Series 2002B Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $9,310,000 pursuant to 2 Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of August I, 2002 (the “2002B Indenture”), with the
Bond Trustee and currently outstanding in the principal amount of [$7,860,000] updated as of
June 30, 2010;

(C) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College College Facilities Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 A
(the “Series 2003A Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $13,320,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “2003A. Indenture™), :
supplementing and amending the 2002A. Indenture, with the Bond Trustee and currently outstanding
in the principal amount of [$11,850,000) updated as of June 30, 2010;

(D) Board of Governors of Fairmont State College Student Activity Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 B (the
“Series 2003B Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $22,925,000 pursuant to a Bond Trust
Indenture and Security Agreement dated as of March 1, 2003 (the “2003B Indenture”), with the
Bond Trustee and currently outstanding in the principal amount of [$20,385,000] updated as of
June 30, 2010; and

(E) Fairmont State University Board of Governors Subordinate Facilities Improvement Revenue Bonds,
Sexzies 2006 (the “Series 2006 Bonds™; the Series 2002A Bonds, the Series 20028 Bonds, the Series
2003A Bonds, the Series 2003B Bonds and the Series 2006 Bonds are hereinafter referred to
together as the “Bonds™), issued in the principal amount of $8,500,000 pursuant to a Bond
Authorizing Resolution adopted on May 3, 2006 (as supplemented and amended, the “2006
Resclution™; the 2002A Indenture, the 20028 Indenture, the 2003A Indenture, the 2003B Indenture _
and the 2006 Resolution, together with the other documents authorizing, securing or otherwise
relating to the Bonds, are hereinafter referred to together as the “Bond Documents™), and currently
outstanding in the principal amount of [$7,306,452.73] updated as of June 30, 2010.

and

WHEREAS, in addition to the statutory requirements described above, the Bond Documents define the
College or University to include any successor thereto and, as such, bind both FSU and PCTC, and both
FSU and PCTC have copies of the Bond Documents,

and N
WHEREAS, the Bond Documents set forth controlling bond covenants and require pledged revenues,
and the intent of this document is to adhere to all existing and future bond covenants.

The Boards of Governors of both Fairmont State University and Pierpont Community and Technical
College recognize that they are bound by all bond covenants and are legally obligated for the bond debt

payments.

Basis of Presentation — The Bond Indenture (the “Indenture™) requires that the University maintain
certain accounts and funds related to the Student Activity Revenue Bonds 2003 Series B (the “Bonds™)
and that the University prepare annual financial statements that set forth the balances and activity in the
specified funds. The following is a description of the funds that the University is required to maintain
and to present in the form of financial statements:

Revenue Fund — The revenue fund accounts for pledged revenues and expenses and costs paid related
thereto and outstanding bonds.



DCS0671871 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396232_8.DOC - To be returned to Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without theiy permission . 11:13 AM

Bond Fund — The bond fund accounts for the proceeds of the bonds and subsequent disbursement
thereof for their intended purpose and the payment of bond principal and interest.

r
These combined special-purpose financial statements do not constitute a complete presentation of the
assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses of the University, but present only the funds the
University is required to present in the combined special-purpose financial statements pursuant to the
provisions of the Indenture.
In accordance with requirements of the Indenture, the accounting records for the Bonds are maintained
on the modified cash receipts and disbursements basis. Consequently, certain revenues and the related
assets are recognized when received rather than when earned, and certain expenses and costs are
recognized when paid rather than when the obligation is incurred. These combined special-purpose
financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting which is another
comprehensive basis of accounting required by the Indenture. The principal modification to the cash
basis of accounting is the recording of bond indebtedness. Consequently, as these are combined
special-purpose financial statements to comply with the Indenture, a Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A) is not included in the combined special-purpose financial statements.

Deposits with the Trustee Bank as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, include $190 and $864, respectively,
invested in a money market fund sponsored by an investment company, the underlying assets of which
are securities of the U.S. government, its agencies, authorities, and instrumentalities.

Deposits with the West Virginia State Treasurer have been pooled for maximization of investment
income. These deposits are combined with deposits of various other funds. Investment income on these _
deposits is allocated to the various funds based on the balances of these deposits at the end of the month
in which the income was earned.

Fixed assets are not included in the combined special-purpose financial statements because they do not
represent financial resources available for expenditures, but are items for which financial resources have
been used. Title to and accountability for fixed assets remain with the University.

2. BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF FAIRMONT STATE UNIVERSITY, STUDENT ACTIVITY
REVENUE BONDS, 2003 SERIES B

In March 2003, $22,925,000 of the Bonds were sold. The Bonds were issued under the authority
contained in Chapter 18, Axticle 23 of the Code of West Virginia, 1931, as amended, and the Bonds are
secured pursuant to the Indenture. and Security Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2003, by and between
the Board and WesBanco Bank, Inc. (the “Trustee”). The Bonds were issued to (1) finance the costs of
design, acquisition, construction, and equipping a new student activities center (including demolition of
an existing dining facility) to be located on the campus of the University (the “Project”), (2) capitalize
interest on the Bonds during and for a reasonable time after construction of the Project, and (3) pay the
costs of issuance of the Bonds and related costs.



DCS0671871 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — For Discussion Purposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396232_8.DOC - To be returned to Deloitie & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without thelr permission 11:13 AM

The Bonds outstanding consist of $2,965,000 of serial bonds, with varying interest rates from 3.6% to
4.1%, and mature serially from June I, 2011 to June 1, 2015. Term bonds mature as follows:

Principal Maturity Interest
Amount Date Rate
$ 5,130,000 June 1, 2022 525 %
325,000 " June 1, 2022 475
11,965,000 June 1, 2032 5.G60

The Bonds maturing June 1, 2022, and June 1, 2032, are subject to mandatory redempiion prior to
maturity. The mandatory redemption prices are 100% of the principal amount, plus accrued interest.

The Bonds are special obligations of the University and are secured by and payable from certain pledged
revenues of the student union and bookstore funds of the University held under the Indenture. The
Bonds shall not be deemed to be general obligations or a debt of the State of West Virginia (the “State™)
within the meaning of the Constitution of the State, and the credit or taxing power of the State or
University shall not be pledged therefor. The Bonds are fully insured as to principal and interest by
Financial Guaranty Insurance Company (FGIC).

The University has fixed and will maintain and collect from each student who attends one or more

classes at the University’s main campus stndent union fees of not less than $110 per semester, as defined
in the Indenture. Upon issuance of the Bonds and while the Bonds are outstanding, the University has
fixed and will maintain and collect from each student who attends one or more classes at the _
University’s main campus operating fees of not less than $40 per semester, as defined in the Indenture.
Upon the opening of the Facilities, ant additional operating fee of not less than $50 per semester will be
assessed. The Student Union Fees and Operating Fees are subject to pro-rata reductions for part-time

and summer term students and for watvers required by West Virginia Code.

The University rust maintain Student Union Fees and Operating Fees to pay operating expenses and to
make the prescribed payments into the funds and accounts created under the Indenture, and such
schedule of rents, charges, and fees shall be revised from time to time to provide for all reasonable
operating expenses, and leave net revenues, when combined with other monies legally available to be
used for such purposes, each fiscal year equal to at least 100% of the maximum annual debt service. For
the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, the University had pledged revenues, as definedinthe
Indenture, which approximated 264% and 233%, respectively, of the maximum annual debt service.



DCS0671871 Not Proofread/Not Footed Preliminary Draft — or Discussion Purposes Only August 30, 2010
DCS_3396232_8.0D0C - To be returned fo Deloitte & Touche LLP and not to be reproduced in any form without their permission  11:13 AM

A summary of annual aggregate principal, interest, and sinking fund payments is as follows:

2003 Series B

Principal Interest
Fiscal Years Ending Payments Due ({Due June 1 and Grand
June 30 June 1 December 1) Total
2011 ~$ 550,000 $ 998,038 $ 1,548,038
2012 570,000 978,238 1,548,238
2013 590,000 956,863 1,546,863
2014 615,000 933,853 1,548,853
2015 640,000 909,253 1,549,253
2016 665,000 883,013 1,548,013
2017 700,000 848,150 1,548,150
2018 735,000 811,475 1,546,475
2019 . 775,000 773,038 1,548,038
2020 215,000 732,550 1,547,550
2021 860,000 690,013 1,550,013
2022 905,000 645,238 1,550,238
2023 950,000 598,250 1,548,250
2024 1,000,000 550,750 1,550,750
2025 . 1,050,000 500,750 1,550,750
2026 . 1,100,000 448,250 1,548,250
2027 1,155,000 393,250 1,548,250
2028 1,215,000 335,500 1,550,500 -
2029 1,275,000 274,750 1,549,750
2030 1,340,000 - 211,000 1,551,000
2031 1,405,000 144,000 1,549,000
2032 1,475,000 73,750 1,548,750
Total outstanding 20,385,000 13,689,972 34,074,972

Cumulative bonds retired and

interest paid through June 30, 2010 2,540,000 7,609,726 10,149,726

$22,925,000 $21,299,698 $44,224,608

3. OTHER TRANSACTIONS

Certain purchasing, accounting, and other administrative services are provided by other State agencies to
the University.

& ok %k ok &k






Pierpont Community and Technical College
Board of Governors
Meeting of October 18, 2010

ITEM:

COMMITTEE:

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:

STAFF MEMBER:

BACKGROUND:

PCTC BOG Oct. 2010 — One-Time Salary Enhancement

Approval of One-Time Salary Enhancement

Committes of the Whole

Whereas, the Community and Technical College System
supports a ome-time salary enhancement for higher
education employees; and

Whereas, due to enrollment increases sufficient budget
exists in FY 2011 to fund a pay raise.

Be it resolved, that the Pierpont Community and Technical
Coliege Board of Governors approves a 2.3% pay increase
for FY 2011 for eligible Pierpont Employees effective
December 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011.

Dale Bradley

Both the Community and Technical College System of WV
and the Higher Education Policy Commission have
engaged the Governor’s Office of Personnel regarding
salary increases for faculty and staff for FY 2011. Due to
the uncertainty of future budgetary demands, the
Governor’s Office of Personnel has agreed that institutions
may provide a one-time salary enhancement that will not
become a part of the recipient’s continuing base salary.

The following employee groups will be eligible to receive
this pay increase:

o Consistent with past practice full-time faculty, full-
time and parttime faculty equivalent academic
professional (FEAP), full-time and part-time
classified staff and full-time and part-time non-
classified staff , except the President, hired prior to
July 1, 2010 and who have not received a promotion
and/or or salary increase since July 1, 2010 will be
considered eligible.



e TFuyll and part-time classified staff meeting the
previous criteria and who have reached full funding -
on the current classified staff salary schedule for
their years of experience and pay grade and did not
receive an October 2010 Mercer step increase will
be considered eligible.

e Adjunct faculty effective for the spring 2011
~ semester will be considered eligible.

PCTC BOG Oct. 2010 — One-Time Salary Enhancement 2



Pierpont Estimates of 2.3% Raise - December 1, 2010

Unrestric

fed

Retirees

FEAP

Non-Classified Staff
Faculty

Classified Staff
Part-Time Staff
Adjunct Faculty
Universily Assessment

Restricted

FEAP

Faculty
Part-Time Staff
Adjunct Facuity

2.3% Raise Benefits Total FSU$ CTC$
680 102 782 0 782
984 148 1,132 484 648

15,025 2254 17,279 825 16,454
68,607 10,204 78,901 1,397 77,504
3,069 461 3,530 1,275 2,255
1,389 209 1,598 811 787
13,573 2,037 15,610 0 15610
49,181

103,327 15,505 118,832 4792 163,221
2,484 372 2,856 0 2,856
2,484 373 2,857 0 2,857
824 123 947 0 947
200 30 230 0 230
5,992 898 6,880 0 6,890

Raise_Report_3 Ed's version.xisx






Pierpont Community and Technical College
Board of Governors
Meeting of October 18, 2010

ITEM:

COMMITTEE:

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION:

STAFF MEMBER:

BACKGROUND:

PCTC BOG Oct. 2010 —FY 2011 Budget Changes

Approval of Recommended Budget Changes to
Unrestricted and Restricted Funds for Fiscal Year 2011.

Committee of the Whole

‘Whereas, enrollment growth for the current academic year
is providing over $500,000 in additional tuition and fee
revenue; and

Whereas, recognition of additional revenues from theses
enrollment increases creates sufficient budget to support a
pay raise for FY 2011 without the spending of reserves.

Be it resolved, that the Pierpont Community and Technical
College Board of Governors approves the attached adjusted
budget plan for FY 2011.

Dale Bradley

Enrollment growth for fall 2010 of approximately 8% has
yielded additional revenues that support a recommended
increase to the revenue budget projections for FY 2011.

This increase in revenue budget projections enables the
one-time pay raise for eligible Pierpont employees without
spending reserves. These estimated additional costs are
included as a part of the budget changes represented on the
attached documents.



Plerpont Community & Technical College
Actuai vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Unrastricted
Ag of September 30, 2010

Approved Current Projected Adjusted

Budget Budygst Changs Budgat - Oct 31

OPERATING REVENUE Tulfion and Feas 7,623,362 7822452 449,400 8,271,862
Facully Sevices Revenue 1.502,580 1,502,585 o 3,502,589

StatelLocal Srants and Contacts ] 0 o ]

Awxtery Enborprise Revenue 1,138,737 1,135,737 56,900 1,132,637

Operaiiog Cosls Revenua 208347 05,234 4] 205,234

Suppart Services Revenla 422098 432,411 4,792 437,203

Dther Operaling Revenus 242,155 271,409 ] 71409

Tolal 14,134,087 11,380,042 511,092 11,880,934

OPERATING EXPENSE Salaries 5,624,509 5,753,867 103,327 5,897,194
Benefis 1,222,928 1,291,258 15,505 1,305,763

Student financlat 2id-scholarships 303,588 305,588 0 305,588

Utilities 0 a9 0 1]

Supplies and Oher Services 1,825,453 1,685,245 L) 4,689,249

Equipment Expense 137,081 136,358 [ 136,398

Loan cancallations and write-offs 0 0 o 0

Fees relained by tha Commizsion 194,819 104,619 [} 104,613

Assassment for Facully Services R 1,248,259 1,272,439 [+ 1272433

Assassment for Support Sendcas 3,902,533 3932,759 49,181 3,981440

Assesa far Activity, Gap., & Dabl Ser Casls 1,436,513 1436513 1194900 1,555,513

Assossmiont for Auxilary Feas & Dbt Sandce - 1,135737 1,235,737 56500 1,102,637

Assessment for Oparating Costs 2,375,530 2,351,073 o ]

Total: . 19,128,030 19,400,000 344,313 19,893,312
OPERATING INCOME { (LOSS) (5,003,143) (419,158} 168,779 {7,852,370)
HONOPERATING REVENUE Stala Appropriations. 7683748 7,683,748 1) 7,583,748
(EXPENSE) Siaka Flacel Slabakzation Funds £59,694 659,694 ] 659,694
Gifts 1,000 2,000 o 1,000

Investmnl tome §7,194 97,154 [+ 57,194

Reappropristed Stats Funding L1} 22,217 ¢ 202217

‘Total: 2,441,638 8,463,853 2] 8,483,853

TRANSFERS & OTHER Cagital Expardifures L] (22.514) ) {27,914}
Transters for Fin Ald Match (78,892} {78,592) 1] {72992)

' Indirect Cost Recovaries a 6,612 [} 6,612

Tranafars - Tiher 0 ] 1] ]

One-lime use of raserve 0 4 0 0
Tatak: {ra92) (100,284} ] {100,294}

BUPGET BALANCE 359,501 244,401 166,773 411,158
PERSONNEL BUDGET SAVINGS 0 a 0 0
PROJECYED EFFECT ON BET ASSETS AT JUNE 30 359,501 244,401 188,772 411,180
Add: PROJECTER UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS » Beginning of Year 4,444,028 4,444,028 4,444,628 4444028
Lass: USE OF RESERVE 2 ] '] 2
Eguaks: PROJECTED UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS - End of Year 4903520 4508428 4810807 4880208

10/5/2010



OPERATING REVENUE

QPERATING EXPENSE

OPERATING INCOME ! (LOSS)
NONOPERATING REVENUE

{EXPENSE)

TRANSFERS & OTHER

BUDSET BALANCE

Add: PROJECTED URRESTRICTED NEY ASSETS - Beginning of Year

Equals: PROJECTED UNRESTRIGTED NET ASSETS - End of Year

10/5/2010

Pierpont Community & Technical Gollege

Actual vs Budget Statement of Revenues and Expenses

Current Restricted
As of September 30, 2010
Approved
Budget

Tuliion and Fees 101,000
Federal Grants and Conimcts 14,127,178
Stale/Local Grants and Coniracls 2400453
Piivale Grants and Conlrcis £67,000
Other Operailng Ravenue 50,500
Total: 17,246,131
Salaries 826,924
Benelils 133,259
Student Finantlal Ald-Scholarships 22,234,369
Utiklles 100
Supplies and Other Services 151,848
Equipmierd Expanse 85,269
Lean cancelations and writo-offs 0
Totak: 24,036,830
(6,790,695}

Faderal Pal Grart Revenves 8000000
Tatal: 8,000,000
Capital Expendituras {11.281)
Transfers for Fin Ald Makh 78,992
Indinect Cost Recoverles {6,612}
Transfers - Other ¢
Total: 61,099
' [729,800)
1.459.063

.48

Cuyrent
Hudget

103,000
14,127,178
2,353,510
570,500
50,500

17,202,688
871,014
141,609

2211420

00
695,557
104,858

0
24,025,555

(6,822,267)

£,000,000

6,000,000

2,173

78,992

{6.612)
0

74,553

(248,314)

1,455 695

Projected
Change

oCDOoOO0

[ 2 =1 ~ -]

o

Ad|ustad
Butiget - Qct 31

101,000
112778
2,353,550
570,500
50,500

17,202,685
77,006
242,507

22,211,420

100
689,657
104,856

Q
24,025,555

(5,222,087}
£,000,000

6,080,000

2373
78,892
(6.612)
&

74,553

(745,314)






Pierpont Community and Technical College

Board of Governors

Meeting of Qctober 19, 2010

ITEM:
COMMITTEE:

RECOMMENDED
RESOLUTION:

STAFF MEMBER:

BACKGROUND:

Folklife Center — Phase IIT Design

Committee of the Whole

Whereas, the Folklife Center Phases I and II are complete and the
Governing Boards resolved that the completion of the last Phase (TH) will
be contingent on the Foundation raising 50 percent for the entire project,
and

Whereas, administration wishes to begin design work for Phase IIf at a
cost of $24.,100.00; and )

Whereas, the Fonndation has agreed to fund the design costs for Phase IIT;
and

Be it resolved, that the Board of Governors approves the administration to
contract with WYX Architects (who was the architect for Phases I & 1I)
for design work in the amount of $24.100.00, to be reimbursed by
Foundation Funds already available for this design work.

Further let it be resolved, that the completion of the last Phase (ill) of the
Folklife Center project contimues to be contingent on the Foundation
raising 50 percent of the total funds for the entire project, including funds
that will come to the Foundation through estate gifts.

Dale Bradley

Attached is the December 11, 2008 Board of Governor’s resolution
approving Phase 1T fonding of the Folklife Center, and the requirement of
the Board for the funding of the last Phase (III).

Also attached is:

e Architects invoice for designing Phase Il (exclusive of bidding
and construction administration costs).

¢ Foundation approval to reimburse for the design fees in the amount

of $24.100.00.

M

PCTC BOG Oct. 2010 - Folklife Center - Phase 1l Design (August 23, 2010) Page 1



‘Fairmont State University Board of Governors
Meeting of December 11, 2008

ITEM: : Folklife Center Project

COMMITTEE: Committee of the Whole

‘Whereas, the first phase of the Frank and Jane Gabor Folklife Center is
scheduled to be completed by the end of December 2008; and

Whaereas, the next phase needs o be completed for the building to be occupied;
and

Whereas, by deferiing other capiial projects, funds can be made available to
complete the next phase according to the cost estimates provnded by WYK
Arch itects; and

Whereas funding the entare project would result in a deficit in capital spending;
and .

Whereas, the Fairmont State Foundation has raised funds for the project and
commiited to a $2 million fund raising campaign;

Now, therefore, be it resclved, that this Board of Governors approves the plan
presented by the administration to fund the next phase of the Frank and Jane
Gabor Folklife Center in the amount of $635,000; and

Be it further resolved, that the completion of the last phase of the project will be

contingent on the Foeundation raising 50 percent of the total funds for the entire
project, including funds that will come to the Foundation through estate giits.

STAFF MEMBER: - - Sarah Hensley



MEMORANDUM
WYK Associates, Inc.

TO: Jim Decker; Assistant VP for Physical Facilities, FSU
FM: Bill Yoke

RE: Gabor Folklife Center; Phase 3

DATE: June 10,2010

As we discussed, FSU is considering completing the design and construction documents for
Phase 8 of the Gabor Center, and waiting until the funding is In place to bid and complete
construction for the project. We have reviewed all of the design work and the construction
completed to date, and based our fee calculations on construction of this phase at a later date.

We propose the following Architectural/Engineering fees for Phase 3:

AJE Fee for complete services $32,700.00
+ Design thru completion of the Construction Documents, $24,100.00
+ Bidding and Construction Administration % 8,800.00

We will prepare and AlA contract form for review and execution if these values are acceptable.
Please let us know if you have any questions or need any additional information.

Distribution: Jim Decker, James B. Swiger, AlA, LEED AP; file

WYK Associates, Inc. PO Box1484  Clarksburg, WV 26301
304-624-6326 304-623-9858 fax  bill@wykarchitects.com



(Tab 2)

noL -
(Tab 3)

Exec Comm Minutes 09 16 10.doc

MINUTES
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
FAIRMONT STATE FOUNDATION, INC,
Thursday, September 16, 2010
7:30 a, m. Erickson Alumni Center Conference Room

Item ] Reporting
Welcome and Call to Order Pellillo

The meeting was called to oxder at 7:35 a.m.

Direcfors Present: Gina Pantasia, Dr, Fred Fidura, Aacon
Hawkins, Kim Pellillo, Becky Phillips, Kevin Rogers,
Gerry Schrnidt, Melissa Watkins, Gary K. Bennett, Dr.
Thomas Krepel, Dr. Doreen Larson, Rick Porto and Dixie
Yann

Directors Absent: John Myers

Invited Guests Present: Dale Bradley, Emily Swain,
Shannon Kelley, Jim Kettering

Staff Present: Devanna Corley

A, Foundation President’s Comments Pellillo
The committee was welcomed.

Minutes Pellillo
A motion was made to approve the minutes of the
August 19, 2010 Executive Committee meeting.

Financial Report Watkins
A motion was made to approve the August 2010
monthly financial report.

Management Reporis

A, Fairmont State University’s Report Krepel

Dr. Krepel provided a report reflective of the
following topics: enrollment, housing, equity
funding an budget instructions from Charleston are
not reflective of budget cuts in FY 2010,

B. Pierpont C&TC President’s Report
Dr. Larson provided a report reflective of the Larson

following topics: enrollment, meeting with Governor
07715110

Action

Information

Motion to Approve:
Schmidt

Seconded:

Fidura

Result:
APPROVED

Motion o Approve:
Watkins

Seconded:

Fidura

Result:
APPROVED

Information

Information

10f38wain



Exec Comm Minutes 09 16 10.doc

Manchin, Pierpont students participating in student
government, upcoming meetings at the WVHTC
Foundation.

Interim Executive Director's Report Yann
Dixie Yann provided a report that consisted of the

progress being made by the development committee

and others. Dixie also mentioned the continued

involvement with the FLC Center project.

Commiitee & Other Reports:

A.

FSU Beard of Governors
No report.

Kettering

PC&TC Board of Governors
As Kyle Hamilton was absent, thexe was no report,

Hamilton

Athletics
Shannon provided information relevant to general
occurrences of the FSAA Board activities.

Kelley

Alumni Relations

Emily provided information relevant to general
occurrences of the Fairmont State Alumni
Association activities.

Swain

Board Governance .
No report.

Yann

Student Enrollment and Scholarship

The committee is pleased to announce that the
Foundation Scholarships are now on-line and can be
viewed from the Apply Now tab on the FSU and
PC&TC homepages.

Phillips

Finance and Investment

Melissa Watkins provided a verbal report of the
completion of the FY2009-2010 audit, with an
unqualified opinion. The full audit report will be
included in the full board packet.

Watkins

A motion was made to accept the FY 2009-2010 audit
report with unqualified opinion.

o7nsAe

Information

Information

Information

Information

Information

Information

Information

Information

Motion fo Approve:

Schmidt
Seconded:
Bennett
Resulf: )
APPROVED

2 of 3 Swain



Exec Comm Minutes 09 16 i0.dec

H. Bylaws
No Report.

I. Development
Dixie Yann reported on behalf of the Development

Committee and discussed the OSIX grant. Dixie and
the committee were pleased with the repoit given by
David Abruzzino.

0Ola Business:

New Business:
Gary Bennett made a motion to approve payments issued
to Nicole Crane for work performed for the Foundation.

Devanna Corley requested issuance of payment to WYK
architectural firm for architectural renderings for Phase I
of the WV Folklife Center.

Devanna Corley informed the boarxd regarding the
request from Donna Nuzum for a match of $250.00 to be
made by the Foundation in the event that Campus
Compact grants funds to FSU and Pierpont for activities
in honor of Martin Luther King, Jr.

Executive Session

The cormmittee went into Executive Session at 8:35 a.m.
Executive Session ended at 3:20 a.m. and the meeting was
adjourned.

Adjournment
With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at
9:20 a.m.

The next Executive Committee meeting will be held
Qctober 14 at 7;30 a.m. in the Erickson Alumni Center
Conference Room. '

Minutes submitted by:
071510

Fantasia

Yann

Bennett

Coxley

Corley

Information

Information

Approval

Motion te Approve:
Benneit

Seconded:

Fiduzra

Resuli:
APPROVED

Approval

Mofion fo Approve:
Fidura

Seconded:

Schmidt -

Result:
APPROVED

Approvalt

Moetion to Approve:
Fidura

Seconded:

Schmids

Result;
APPROVED

3 of 3 Swain



Devanna Corley

Exec Comm Minutes 09 16 10.doc 07115110 4 of 3 Swain



